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Chairman’s Statement
INTRODUCTION
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present the Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements of the Group and the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010.
FINANCIAL REVIEW
The Group’s revenue for the year decreased from RM49.1 million to RM39.5 million and the profit
net of tax from RM10.1 million to RM4.3 million.
The Group’s performance was mainly affected by increase in competition, overall lower occupancy
rate and less patronage by the Government, particularly fewer functions were being held at hotels
during the year.
DIVIDENDS
The Board of Directors is pleased to recommend a final dividend of 3% less taxation in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2010. The dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
PROSPECTS
The Board expects the hotel and tourism industry for the year 2011 to remain difficult especially in
view of the continuing global financial crisis, instability in the Middle East and natural disasters
striking at various parts of the world.
APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board, I wish to thank the management and staff for their conscientious efforts,
contributions, dedication and commitment towards the Group. I would also like to extend my
gratitude to all our valued customers and shareholders for their continued support.

TAN ENG TEONG
CHAIRMAN
7 MARCH 2011
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Corporate Structure

Grand Central Enterprises Bhd.
100%
Grand Central ( K.L. ) Sdn. Bhd.
100%
Grand Central Enterprises ( Trengganu ) Sdn. Bhd.
100%
Grand Central Enterprises ( Malacca ) Sdn. Bhd.
100%
Grand Central Enterprises ( Pahang ) Sdn. Bhd.
100%
Hotel Grand Olympic ( M ) Sdn. Bhd.
100%
Grand Central Enterprises ( Sarawak ) Sdn. Bhd.
100%
Grand Central Enterprises ( Perak ) Sdn. Bhd.
100%
Grand Central Trans-Services Sdn. Bhd.
86.36%
Grand Island Hotel ( Langkawi ) Sdn. Bhd.
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Network Of Hotels

Grand Central Enterprises Bhd.

Hotel Grand Continental • Kuala Lumpur

Hotel Grand Continental • Kuching

-5-

Network Of Hotels

Hotel Grand Continental • Kuantan

Hotel Grand Continental • Kuala Terengganu

Hotel Grand Continental • Langkawi
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Network Of Hotels

Hotel Grand Continental • Malacca

Grand Central Trans-Services Sdn. Bhd. • Kuala Lumpur

Hotel Grand Central • Kuala Lumpur

* Hotel Grand Continental • Penang

* Hotel Grand Crystal • Kedah
* Hotels owned by others.
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Directors’ Profile
TAN ENG TEONG
Tan Eng Teong, aged 73, Malaysian, was appointed as the Executive Chairman of Grand Central
Enterprises Bhd. (“GCE”) on 20 November 1991 and is one of its founder members. Mr Tan has
over the years accumulated vast experience in the hotel and travel, property development and
investments and manufacturing industry. He is currently the Chairman and Managing Director of
Hotel Grand Central Limited, Singapore which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Singapore and
sits on the Board of some of the subsidiary companies within the GCE Group as well as the Board
of several other private companies in Australia and New Zealand.
Tan Eng Teong is the brother of Tan Teck Lin and Tan Eng How and he is deemed to have an
interest in Hotel Grand Central Limited and Tan Chee Hoe & Sons Sdn. Bhd., the substantial
shareholders of GCE, by virtue of his interest in these companies.
TAN TECK LIN
Tan Teck Lin, aged 69, Malaysian, was appointed as the Managing Director of GCE on 20
November 1991 and is one of its founder members. He is also an Executive Director of Hotel
Grand Central Limited, Singapore. Apart from managing all the hotels in GCE Group, Mr Tan
maintains a very active role in various hotels in Singapore, Australia and New Zealand.
He also sits on the Board of several other companies that are involve in the businesses of property
development, manufacturing, travel and hospitality industry.
Tan Teck Lin is the brother of Tan Eng Teong and Tan Eng How and he is deemed to have an
interest in Hotel Grand Central Limited and Tan Chee Hoe & Sons Sdn. Bhd., the substantial
shareholders of GCE, by virtue of his interest in these companies.
TAN ENG HOW
Tan Eng How, aged 56, Malaysian, was appointed as the Executive Director of GCE on 17
January 1986 and is one of its founder members. He is involved in the day-to-day operations of
the chain of hotels in GCE Group. Mr Tan is a member of the Hotel Catering and Institutional
Management Association, United Kingdom and obtained a post-graduate diploma in hotel and
catering administration from the Council for National Academic Awards, United Kingdom. He is a
Director of Hotel Grand Central Limited, Singapore and an Executive Director in some of the
subsidiary companies of GCE.
Tan Eng How is the brother of Tan Eng Teong and Tan Teck Lin and he is deemed to have an
interest in Hotel Grand Central Limited and Tan Chee Hoe & Sons Sdn. Bhd., the substantial
shareholders of GCE, by virtue of his interest in these companies.
TAN HWA IMM
Tan Hwa Imm, aged 44, Malaysian, was appointed to the Board of GCE as an Executive Director
on 31 May 2001. She has been the Group’s Financial Controller since 1995. She worked in a
London based international accounting firm for 5 years and later as a Financial Controller of a
commercial company. She graduated from the London School of Economics with a Bachelor of
Science Degree in Management Sciences (Second Upper Honours) and is also an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Tan Hwa Imm is the daughter of Tan Teck Lin.
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Directors’ Profile
TAN SRI DATO SRI ABANG HAJI AHMAD URAI BIN
DATU HAKIM ABANG HAJI MOHIDEEN
Tan Sri Dato Sri Abang Haji Ahmad Urai bin Datu Hakim Abang Haji Mohideen, PMN, PNBS,
DSNB (BRUNEI), JBS, AMN, aged 77, Malaysian, was appointed to the Board of GCE as an
Independent Non-Executive Director on 7 February 1994. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of
GCE. After his retirement in his last post in the public service as Malaysian Senate President in
1990, he was invited to sit on the Board of various companies.
Tan Sri Dato Sri Abang Haji Ahmad Urai bin Datu Hakim Abang Haji Mohideen had received a
considerable number of Government awards in recognition for his past services to his State of
Sarawak and the country. After obtaining the Overseas Junior Cambridge School Certificate, St.
Joseph’s School, Kuching in 1953, he served in the British Colonial Civil Service in Sarawak from
1954 to 1961 and in the Chief Minister’s Office, Kuching after Sarawak’s Independence in
Malaysia from 1961 to 1969. Elected as Sarawak State Assemblyman in 1974. He was appointed
as Sarawak Assistant Minister for Culture, Youth and Sports on 1 November 1976 and as
Assistant Minister for Agriculture and Community Development on 26 March 1981. Elected by
Sarawak State Assembly to serve as Senator in the Upper House of Parliament, Kuala Lumpur on
13 November 1984. The House of Senate elected him to be Deputy Senate President on 15 April
1985. He was elevated to the post of Malaysian Senate President on 8 July 1988 and retired on 8
July 1990 after serving a full 6 year term as a Senator.
WONG TOW CHEONG
Wong Tow Cheong, aged 73, Malaysian, was appointed to the Board of GCE as an Independent
Non-Executive Director on 19 May 2006. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of GCE. Mr Wong graduated
with Bachelor in Architect from University of Curtin, W.A. in 1961. He is a Registered Architect and
has been practicing since 1962. Mr Wong is the founder of Wong T.C. Architects & Associates
Sdn. Bhd. Some of the major projects undertaken by the Firm were Wisma UOA in Bangsar,
Damansara and Kuala Lumpur, Grand Continental Hotels, Wisma TCT in Kuala Lumpur, factories
in Kepong and Shah Alam, and residential houses/apartments in Kuala Lumpur and Selangor.
LEE WAI KUEN
Lee Wai Kuen, aged 46, Malaysian, was appointed to the Board of GCE as an Independent NonExecutive Director on 21 May 2008. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of GCE. Mr Lee graduated with the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) in 1993. He became an associate member of ACCA in
1995 and obtained his fellowship in 2000. Currently he is a member of both the Malaysian Institute
of Accountants (MIA) and Malaysian Institute of Taxation (MIT).
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Corporate Governance Statement
The Board of Directors of Grand Central Enterprises Bhd. (“GCE”) recognises the importance of
practicing good corporate governance and is fully committed to ensuring the Group practices the
highest standard of corporate governance in line with the Malaysian Corporate Governance Guide
to achieve Group’s governing objective of maximising shareholders’ value.
In preparing this report, the Board has considered the manner in which the Company has applied
the principles of the Code and the extent to which it has complied with the Best Practices of a
Code. This statement below details out the commitment of the Board towards good corporate
governance principles set out in Part 1 of the Code and the extent to which it has applied and
complied with the best practices set out in Part 2 of the Code throughout the financial year ended
31 December 2010.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Responsibilities
The Board shows its commitment to leading and controlling the Group's overall strategic direction
by meeting at least quarterly and when necessary for any matters which may arise between
meetings. Each year the Board reviews the Group's procedures and performances and will
arrange suitable training when appropriate.
Board Balance
The Board consists of four Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The profiles of the members of the Board are provided on pages 8 and 9 of the Annual Report.
The Board met four times during the financial year ended 31 December 2010. The details of
attendance of each Director at the Board meetings held during the financial year at the Conference
Room of Hotel Grand Continental, 10th Floor, Jalan Belia/Jalan Raja Laut, 50350 Kuala Lumpur
are set out as below:
Name of Director

23 February
2010
(1300 hrs)

11 May
2010
( 1330 hrs)

10 August
2010
(1330 hrs)

8 November
2010
(1500 hrs)

Tan Eng Teong

X

X

X

X

Tan Teck Lin

X

X

X

X

Tan Eng How

X

X

X

X

Tan Hwa Imm

X

X

X

X

Tan Sri Dato Sri Abang Haji Ahmad
Urai bin Datu Hakim Abang
Haji Mohideen

X

X

X

X

Wong Tow Cheong

X

X

X

X

Lee Wai Kuen

X

X

X

X
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Corporate Governance Statement
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D.)
Supply Of Information
To fulfil the responsibilities set out above, the Directors are provided with timely and appropriate
information in advance of each meeting regarding the trading and financial affairs of the Group.
The Directors have full access to all information within the Group to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities. Further, the Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, and may seek external independent professional advice where required.
Appointment Of Directors
The Nomination Committee is responsible in recommending to the Board on the appointment of
any additional Director deemed necessary with due consideration given to the mix of expertise and
experience required for an effective Board. Directors who are appointed by the Board during the
financial year are subject to re-election by the shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting
held following their appointments.
Directors' Training
All Directors have attended the Mandatory Accreditation Programme as prescribed by the Listing
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Bhd. In addition thereto, all directors have attended
relevant courses and seminars. Messrs Tan Eng Teong, Tan Teck Lin, Tan Eng How, Tan Hwa
Imm, Wong Tow Cheong, Tan Sri Dato Sri Abang Haji Ahmad Urai Bin Datu Hakim Abang Haji
Mohideen and Lee Wai Kuen have attended training course on “The Main Market Listing
Requirements on Corporate Governance”. Mr. Lee Wai Kuen also attended tax conference on
“2011 Budget Talk” and “2011 Budget Seminar – Highlights & Implications”.
The Directors also constantly keep abreast with the current changes in laws and regulations, and
business environment through various media channels.
Re-election/Re-appointment
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, one-third or the number nearest one-third
of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office, and each Director shall retire from office
once at least in every three (3) years. The Articles of Association of the Company further provide
that any Director appointed by the Board during the year shall hold office only until the next
following Annual General Meeting after his appointment. The Director(s) retired shall be eligible for
re-election.
Pursuant to Section 129(6) of the Companies Act, 1965, Directors over the age of seventy (70)
years are subject to re-appointment as Directors to hold office until the next Annual General
Meeting.
Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee was established by the Board on 21 February 2005 and the
Committee Members are:
Chairman
Tan Sri Dato Sri Abang Haji Ahmad Urai bin Datu Hakim Abang Haji Mohideen
Independent Non-Executive Director
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Corporate Governance Statement
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D.)
Nomination Committee (cont’d.)
Members
Wong Tow Cheong
Independent Non-Executive Director
Lee Wai Kuen
Independent Non-Executive Director
The functions of the Committee include:(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

to recommend the nomination of a person or persons for all directorships to be filled by the
shareholders or the Board;
to consider, in making its recommendations, candidates for directorships proposed by the
Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer and, within the bounds of practicability, by any
other senior executive or any Director or shareholder;
to recommend to the Board, Directors to fill the seats on Board committees;
to assess annually the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the committees of the Board
and the contribution of each existing individual Director and thereafter, recommend its
findings to the Board; and
to review annually the required mix of skills and experience and other qualities, including
core competencies which Non-executive Directors should bring to the Board and thereafter,
recommend its finding to the Board.
to evaluate and determine the training needs of the Directors on a continuous basis to aid
the Directors in discharge of their duties as Directors.

Directors Remuneration
Procedure
The fees of Directors, including non-executive Directors, are endorsed by the Board for approval
by the shareholders of the Group at the Annual General Meeting.
Disclosure
The aggregate remuneration of Directors of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2010 are as follows:

Executive Directors
Non-Executive Directors

Fees
RM

Salaries & Other
Emoluments
RM

Total
RM

110,000
47,000

730,640
-

840,640
47,000
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Corporate Governance Statement
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D.)
Directors Remuneration (cont’d.)
Disclosure (cont’d.)
The number of Directors whose remuneration fall into the following bands is as follows:
Range of Remuneration

Executive

Non-Executive

Below RM50,000
RM100,001 – RM150,000
RM150,001 – RM200,000
RM250,001 – RM300,000

1
1
2

3
-

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on 21 February 2005 and the
Committee Members are:
Chairman
Tan Sri Dato Sri Abang Haji Ahmad Urai bin Datu Hakim Abang Haji Mohideen
Independent Non-Executive Director
Members
Wong Tow Cheong
Independent Non-Executive Director
Lee Wai Kuen
Independent Non-Executive Director
The functions of the Committee include recommendation to the Board, the remuneration packages
of Managing Director, Executive Directors and senior management of the Company in all its forms,
drawing from outside advice if necessary. The remuneration packages of Non-executive Directors
should be determined by the Board of Directors as a whole.
DIALOGUE WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Directors encourage and seek to build up a mutual understanding of objectives between the
Group and it’s shareholders. The Board seeks to encourage shareholders to attend the Annual
General Meeting. It uses the Annual General Meeting to communicate with private investors and
encourages their participation.
EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT
The Board values two-way communication between senior management and employees at all
levels. Regular management visits are made to each hotel and meetings are held whereby
consultation takes place with employees on developments within the business.
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Corporate Governance Statement
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Internal Control
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system of internal control and risk
management and it is the Board's responsibility to review its effectiveness. The Group's systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement, loss or
fraud. The concept of reasonable assurance recognises the costing aspect, whereby the cost of
control procedures is not to exceed the expected benefits.
The Board recognises that risks cannot be completely eliminated. As such, the systems,
processes and procedures being put in place are aimed at minimising and managing them. The
Group has an ongoing process for identifying, evaluation and managing key risks in the context of
its business objectives.
The statement on internal control is set out on page 17. It provides an overview of the state of
internal control within the Group.
Audit Committee
In addition to the duties and responsibilities set out under its terms of reference, the Audit
Committee acts as a forum for discussion of internal control issues and contributes to the Board's
review of the effectiveness of the Group's internal control and risk management systems. The
Committee also conducts a review of the internal audit functions i.e. its authority, resources and
scope of work. It also ensures that no restrictions are placed on the scope of the statutory audits
and on the independence of the internal audit functions.
The minutes of the Audit Committee Meetings are tabled to the Board for noting and for action by
the Board where necessary.
The activities of the Audit Committee during the year are set out under the Audit Committee
Report on pages 18 to 21.
Relationship with External Auditors
The role of the Audit Committee in relation to the external auditors is described in Audit Committee
Report on pages 18 to 21.
Financial Reporting
In presenting the annual financial statements and quarterly announcement of results to
shareholders, the Directors take responsibility to present a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's position and prospects. The Audit Committee of the Board assists by
scrutinizing the information to be disclosed, to ensure accuracy and adequacy.
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Corporate Governance Statement
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose, with
reasonableness at any time, the financial position of the Group and the Company and enable them
to ensure that the accounts comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and the
applicable Financial Reporting Standards in Malaysia and the Listing Requirements of the Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad. They are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and
the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.
RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
It is the responsibility of the Directors to ensure that the financial reporting of the Group and the
Company present a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at
the end of the financial year and of their results and their cash flows for the year then ended.
The Directors are satisfied that in preparing the financial statements of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2010, the Group had used the appropriate and relevant accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and fair.
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and the Directors have ensured
that proper accounting records are kept so as to enable the preparation of the financial statements
with reasonable accuracy.
The Directors have also taken the necessary steps to ensure that the appropriate systems are in
place for the assets of the Group to be properly safeguarded for prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities. The systems, by their nature, can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement, loss and fraud.
The auditors' responsibilities are stated in their report to the shareholders.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
We believe that corporate social responsibility (CSR) is an integral part of how we, as provider of
services conduct business, make decisions and, set our priorities.
The Group is committed to undertake a holistic approach to incorporate a sustainability ethos into
our everyday doings. It's about the way we do business with sustainability-driven possibilities. We
are responsive to our customers' needs and comfort by providing the convenience of
accommodation at strategic locations throughout Malaysia with value for money facilities and
services. The trust and a sense of faith from our stakeholders in our services is a reflection of how
we deliver our responsibilities towards the health and welfare of the community. Our food is void of
preservatives while energy-saving and environmental-friendly products are used for the benefits of
our customers.
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Corporate Governance Statement
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CONT’D.)
We also extended assistance to the underprivileged of the lesser significant homes and individuals
to provide both financial and moral support. In this way, our organisation as well as individual
employees had the opportunity to help those in need. During the year, we held charity drives for
each festive event which included the distribution of food and beverages to orphanages and old
folks homes during Ramadhan and visitations to underprivileged homes during Chinese New Year,
Deepavali and Christmas. A donation campaign for Rumah Faith was organized in conjunction
with the Christmas celebrations.
As for our employees, we offer an employment experience of continuous learning. We
progressively strive for improvement on quality, safety and comfort in the development of every
individual.
Hence, at the Group, we take measures to minimise environmental impacts, to achieve both
positive and sustainable outcomes for our Group and the communities in which we manage our
business and operations.
OTHER INFORMATION
Conflict Of Interest
None of the Directors have any conflict of interest with the Group.
Material Contracts
There were no material contracts entered into by the Group which involve Directors' and major
shareholders' interest either still subsisting at the end of the financial year ended 31 December
2010 or entered into since the end of the previous financial year.
Conviction For Offences
None of the Directors have been convicted of any offences within the past ten years other than traffic
offences, if any.
Internal Audit Function
The Group has an internal audit department. The cost incurred for the financial year amounted to
RM67,000.
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Internal Control Statement
INTRODUCTION
Paragraph 15.26(b) of the Listing Requirements of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad requires
the Board of Directors of a listed company to include in its annual report a "statement about the
state of internal control of the company as a Group".
RESPONSIBILITY
The Board of Grand Central Enterprises Bhd. is committed to maintain a sound system of internal
control within the Group and is responsible for reviewing its adequacy and integrity.
The Group's systems of internal controls are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.
KEY PROCESSES
The Group has an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing key risks in the
context of its business objectives. These processes are embedded within the Group's overall
business operations and guided by operational manuals and policies and procedures.
The key processes that the Board has established in reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the
system of internal control, are as follows:
-

The Group has a clearly defined organisational structure together with lines of responsibility
and delegation of authority, including proper approval and authority limit for controlling and
approving capital expenditure and expenses;

-

The annual budgeting and target setting process for the Group's key areas of business
which is approved by Board;

-

The policies and procedures for the processes of the Group's operation are documented in
the Group accounting and control manuals, and are updated from time to time;

-

An internal audit function which includes performing regular reviews of the business
processes to assess effectiveness of the internal control system and to highlight significant
risks impacting the Group with recommendation for improvements;

-

The Audit Committee meets regularly during the financial year ended 31 December 2010
and hold discussion with management on the action taken on internal control issues
prepared by the internal auditors. The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are tabled
to the Board on a quarterly basis. Further details of the activities undertaken by the Audit
Committee are set out in the Audit Committee report;

-

The Group carries insurance cover in respect of insurable business risk, including property
risk, to appropriate levels, which are determined upon consultation with insurance brokers;

-

There are proper guidelines drawn-up by the Group for hiring and termination of staff, formal
training programme for staff, annual performance appraisal and other relevant procedures in
place to achieve the objective of ensuring the staff are competent to carry out their
responsibilities.
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Audit Committee
COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee members are:
Chairman
Wong Tow Cheong
Independent Non-Executive Director
Members
Tan Sri Dato Sri Abang Haji Ahmad Urai bin Datu Hakim Abang Haji Mohideen
Independent Non-Executive Director
Lee Wai Kuen
Independent Non-Executive Director
The Committee shall be appointed from amongst the Board and shall consist of not less than
three members. All Audit Committee members must be non-executive directors with a majority of
them being independent directors.
At least one of the Audit Committee:
i)
must be a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants; or
ii)
if he is not a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, he must have at least three
years' working experience and;
a)
he must have passed the examinations specified in Part I of the First schedule of the
Accountants Act 1967; or
b)
he must be a member of one of the associations of accountants specified in Part II of
the First Schedule of the Accountants Act 1967.
iii)
Fulfil such other requirements as prescribed or approved by Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad.
No alternate director shall be appointed as a member of the Committee.
The Chairman who shall be elected by the Audit Committee, must be an independent director.
In the event the elected Chairman is not able to attend a meeting, a member of the Audit
Committee shall be nominated as Chairman for the meeting. The nominated Chairman shall be
an independent director.
If the number of members of the Committee is reduced to below three for reasons of resignation,
death or otherwise, the Board must appoint such number of new members as required to make
up the minimum number of three members within three months.
The term of office and performance of the Committee and each of its members shall be reviewed
by the Board of Directors at least once every three (3) years to determine whether such
Committee and its members have carried out their duties in accordance with the terms of
reference.
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Audit Committee
TERMS OF REFERENCE
Authority
The Committee is granted the authority to investigate any activity with full and unrestricted
access to any information of the Company and its subsidiaries, and all employees are directed to
co-operate as requested by members of the Committee.
The Committee is authorised to obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice at
the cost of the Company and to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and
expertise at the meeting of the Committee, if it considers necessary.
The Committee is authorise to convene meetings with the external auditors, the internal auditors
or both excluding the attendance of other directors and employees of the listed Company,
whenever deemed necessary.
Functions
i)
ii)
iii)

iv)
v)

vi)
vii)
viii)
ix)
x)
xi)
xii)

to consider appointment of the external auditors, the audit fee and any questions of
resignation or dismissal
to discuss with the external auditors before the audit commences the nature and scope of
the audit, and ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved.
to review with the management and the external auditors the quarterly and year-end
financial statements before their submission to the Board, focussing particularly on:
any changes in or implementation of major accounting policies and practices

significant unusual events

significant adjustments arising from the audit

the going concern assumption

compliance with accounting standards

compliance with stock exchange and other legal requirements
to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and final audits, and any
matters the auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of management where necessary)
to review the internal audit programme, process and the results of the internal audit
programme, process or investigation undertaken and whether or not the management takes
appropriate action on the recommendations of the internal audit functions
to review the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources of the internal
audit functions and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work
to review with external auditors, their audit reports
to review the assistance given by the employees to the external auditors
to discuss with the external auditors the quality of the Company's financial and accounting
personnel and relevant recommendations by the external auditors
to direct and where appropriate supervise any special projects or investigation considered
necessary
to prepare periodic reports to the Board of Directors summarising the work performed in
fulfilling the Audit Committee's primary responsibilities
to consider other topics, as defined by the Board
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Audit Committee
TERMS OF REFERENCE (CONT’D.)
Meetings
The quorum for any meetings of the Committee shall be two, the majority of members present
must be independent directors.
The Committee must meet at least four times a year.
The Finance Director (if any), the head of internal audit, a representative of the external auditors
and other Board members have the right of attendance.
Upon request by the external auditors, the Chairman of the Committee shall convene a meeting of
the Committee to consider any matters the external auditors believe should be brought to the
attention of the directors or shareholders of the Company.
There were four meetings held during the financial year and the attendance of the present audit
committee members are as follows:No. of Committee Meetings
Held
Attended

Committee Members

Wong Tow Cheong
Tan Sri Dato Sri Abang Haji Ahmad Urai
bin Datu Hakim Abang Haji Mohideen
Lee Wai Kuen

4

4

4
4

4
4

Minutes
The Company Secretary shall be the secretary of the Committee and record the proceedings of
the meetings.
The minutes of each meeting shall be kept and distributed to each member. All minutes of
meeting shall be circulated to every member of the Board. The secretary of the Committee shall
report on each meeting to the Board.
Internal Audit Function
The Audit Committee is supported by an Internal Audit Department. The main role of the Internal
Audit Department is to review the effectiveness of the systems of controls in the Company and its
subsidiaries. During the financial year, audit assignments, investigation and follow-up were carried
out by the Internal Audit Department on the Group's management and operations. The results
were reported to the Audit Committee for further action. The Internal Audit Department is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company and its subsidiaries to
carry out its duties.
The Internal Audit Department also involves itself in facilitating the improvement of business
process within the Company and its subsidiaries.
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Audit Committee
Summary of Activities
The activities performed by the Audit Committee during the financial year were:(i)
(ii)
(iii)

Discussed significant accounting and auditing issues and Management Letter with the
external auditors.
Reviewed and recommended the unaudited quarterly financial statements and the annual
audited financial statements to the Board of Directors for approval.
Reviewed the Group's compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965, the
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements and applicable Financial Reporting
Standards in Malaysia.
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Directors' Report
The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2010.
Principal activities
The Group is principally engaged in all aspects of the hotel business, provision of limousine
services and hotel management services.
The Company is principally engaged in all aspects of the hotel business.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

Results

Profit net of tax
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Group
RM

Company
RM

4,309,646

4,401,948

4,200,415
109,231
4,309,646

4,401,948
4,401,948

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other
than as disclosed in the financial statements.
In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company
during the financial year were not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a
material and unusual nature.
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Directors' Report
Dividends
Since the end of the previous financial year, the Company paid a final dividend of 3% less 25%
taxation amounting to RM4,432,545 on 19 May 2010 in respect of the previous financial year as
proposed in the directors’ report of that year.
At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended
31 December 2010, of 3% less 25% taxation on 197,002,000 ordinary shares, amounting to a
dividend payable of RM4,432,545 (2.25 sen net per ordinary share) will be proposed for
shareholders’ approval. The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this
proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for in equity
as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 December 2011.

Directors
The names of the directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the
date of this report are:
Tan Eng Teong
Tan Teck Lin
Tan Eng How
Tan Sri Dato Sri Abang Haji Ahmad Urai bin Datu Hakim Abang Haji Mohideen
Tan Hwa Imm
Wong Tow Cheong
Lee Wai Kuen

Directors' benefits
Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any
arrangement to which the Company was a party, whereby the directors might acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to
receive any benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments
received or due and receivable by the directors or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the
Company as shown in Note 8 to the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the
Company or a related corporation with any director or with a firm of which the director is a
member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest.
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Directors' Report
Directors' interests
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at the end
of the financial year in shares and warrants in the Company during the financial year were as
follows:
Number of ordinary shares of RM1 each
Balance at
Balance at
1.1.2010
Bought
Sold
31.12.2010
Direct interests
Tan Eng Teong

13,000

-

-

13,000

Tan Teck Lin

13,000

-

-

13,000

Tan Eng How

32,000

-

-

32,000

Tan Hwa Imm

80,000

-

-

80,000

Tan Eng Teong

143,733,061

-

-

143,733,061

Tan Teck Lin

144,241,961

-

-

144,241,961

Tan Eng How

143,157,061

-

-

143,157,061

Tan Hwa Imm

998,900

-

-

998,900

Expired*

Balance at
31.12.2010

Indirect interests

Number of warrants
Balance at
1.1.2010

Bought

7,000

-

(7,000)

-

Tan Eng Teong

21,604,861

-

(21,604,861)

-

Tan Teck Lin

21,656,861

-

(21,656,861)

-

Tan Eng How

21,597,861

-

(21,597,861)

-

Tan Hwa Imm

52,000

-

(52,000)

-

Direct interests
Tan Eng How
Indirect interests

*

During the financial year, the unexercised warrants have expired and lapsed on 17 February
2010.
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Directors' Report
Directors' interests (cont'd.)
By virtue of their interests in shares in the Company, Tan Eng Teong, Tan Teck Lin and Tan Eng
How are also deemed interested in shares of the Company’s subsidiaries to the extent that the
Company has an interest.
Other than as stated above, the other directors in office at the end of the financial year did not
have any interest in shares in the Company or its related corporations during the financial year.
Other statutory information
(a) Before the statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial position of the
Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps:
(i)

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts
and the making of provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known
bad debts had been written off and that adequate provision had been made for doubtful
debts; and

(ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown in
the accounting records in the ordinary course of business had been written down to an
amount which they might be expected so to realise.
(b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would
render:
(i)

the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts in
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial
extent; and

(ii) the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company misleading.
(c) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen
which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of
the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.
(d) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise
dealt with in this report or financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would
render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.
(e) As at the date of this report, there does not exist:
(i)

any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the
end of the financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(ii) any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end
of the financial year.
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Directors' Report
Other statutory information (cont'd.)
(f)

In the opinion of the directors:
(i)

no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which
will or may affect the ability of the Group or of the Company to meet their obligations
when they fall due; and

(ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval
between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect
substantially the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the
financial year in which this report is made.

Auditors
The auditors, Ernst & Young, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 23 February
2011.

Tan Teck Lin

Tan Eng How

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
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Statement By Directors
Pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1965
We, Tan Teck Lin and Tan Eng How, being two of the directors of Grand Central Enterprises
Bhd., do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial statements
set out on pages 31 to 92 are drawn up in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and
the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2010 and of their financial performance and
the cash flows for the year then ended.
The information set out in Note 33 to the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Guidance on Special Matter No.1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or
Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing
Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 23 February
2011.

Tan Teck Lin

Tan Eng How

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
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Statutory Declaration
Pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act, 1965
I, Tan Hwa Imm, being the director primarily responsible for the financial management of Grand
Central Enterprises Bhd., do solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial
statements set out on pages 31 to 92 are in my opinion correct, and I make this solemn
declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the
Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by
the abovenamed TAN HWA IMM
at Kuala Lumpur in the Federal
Territory on 23 February 2011

Tan Hwa Imm

Before me,
R. VASUGI AMMAL (W 480)
Commisioner for Oaths
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Independent Auditors' Report
to the Members of Grand Central Enterprises Bhd.
Report on the financial statements
We have audited the financial statements of Grand Central Enterprises Bhd., which comprise the
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2010 of the Group and of the Company, and
the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of
cash flow of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 31 to 92.
Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act,
1965 in Malaysia. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to
the Group’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2010 and
of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.
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Independent Auditors' Report
to the Members of Grand Central Enterprises Bhd.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the
following:
(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be
kept by the Company and its subsidiaries have been properly kept in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.
(b) We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been
consolidated with the financial statements of the Company are in form and content
appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us
for those purposes.
(c) The auditors' reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries were not subject to any
qualification material to the consolidated financial statements and did not include any
comment required to be made under Section 174(3) of the Act.
Other matters
The supplementary information set out in Note 33 on page 93 is disclosed to meet the
requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The directors are responsible for the
preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter
No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure
Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants ("MIA Guidance") and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
In our opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance
with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance, with
Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

Ernst & Young
AF: 0039
Chartered Accountants

Teoh Soo Hock
No. 2477/10/11(J)
Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
23 February 2011
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Consolidated Statement Of Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended 31 December 2010

Note

Revenue
Changes in inventories
Purchase of inventories
Other income
Staff costs
Depreciation
Other expenses
Operating profit
Finance costs
Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Profit net of tax, representing total
comprehensive income for the year

4

5
6

7
9
10

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Earnings per share attributable to equity holders
of the Company (sen):
Basic
Fully diluted

11
11

2009
(restated)
RM

2010
RM
39,502,335
(46,020)
(3,463,611)
1,953,520
(11,725,118)
(6,269,616)
(13,803,859)
6,147,631
(95,377)
6,052,254
(1,742,608)

49,146,448
(16,967)
(4,516,080)
1,869,886
(12,279,516)
(6,274,969)
(14,402,111)
13,526,691
(61,126)
13,465,565
(3,403,558)

4,309,646

10,062,007

4,200,415
109,231
4,309,646

9,824,253
237,754
10,062,007

2.1
2.1

5.0
4.5

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement Of Financial Position
As At 31 December 2010

2010
RM

2009
(restated)
RM

As at
1.1.2009
(restated)
RM

13
22

241,393,252
9,198,435
250,591,687

245,782,306
9,622,814
255,405,120

250,465,164
10,918,897
261,384,061

15
16
17

462,956
2,834,974
1,040,470
115,971
45,735,271
50,189,642

508,976
3,632,018
1,149,823
11,447
39,876,735
45,178,999

525,943
4,218,107
967,271
47,826
31,252,902
37,012,049

300,781,329

300,584,119

298,396,110

197,002,000
7,852,840
51,422,984
256,277,824
2,085,382
258,363,206

197,002,000
7,852,840
51,655,114
256,509,954
2,141,151
258,651,105

197,002,000
7,852,840
46,263,406
251,118,246
2,173,397
253,291,643

20
22

58,605
26,559,306
26,617,911

16,494
26,810,351
26,826,845

112,148
27,454,727
27,566,875

20
23
24

8,675,010
1,648,501
5,193,040
283,661
15,800,212

7,853,821
1,635,279
5,029,928
587,141
15,106,169

9,902,623
2,323,113
4,910,360
401,496
17,537,592

42,418,123

41,933,014

45,104,467

300,781,329

300,584,119

298,396,110

Note

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Tax recoverable
Cash and bank balances

18

Total assets
Equity and liabilities
Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Share capital
Non-distributable reserves
Retained earnings
Shareholders’ equity
Minority interests
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Long term borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Current liabilities
Short term borrowings
Trade payables
Other payables
Tax payable

19
25

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Equity
For The Year Ended 31 December 2010

Share
capital
RM
(Note 19)

<--Non-distributable-->
Share
premium
Capital
reserve
reserve*
RM
RM

Distributable
Retained
earnings
RM
(Note 25)

Total
RM

Minority
interests
RM

Total
equity
RM

Opening balance at 1 January 2010
Total comprehensive income
Dividends (Note 12)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders
Closing balance at 31 December 2010

197,002,000
197,002,000

2,394,693
2,394,693

5,458,147
5,458,147

51,655,114
4,200,415
(4,432,545)
51,422,984

256,509,954
4,200,415
(4,432,545)
256,277,824

2,141,151
109,231
(165,000)
2,085,382

258,651,105
4,309,646
(4,432,545)
(165,000)
258,363,206

Opening balance at 1 January 2009
Total comprehensive income
Dividends (Note 12)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders
Closing balance at 31 December 2009

197,002,000
197,002,000

2,394,693
2,394,693

5,458,147
5,458,147

46,263,406
9,824,253
(4,432,545)
51,655,114

251,118,246
9,824,253
(4,432,545)
256,509,954

2,173,397
237,754
(270,000)
2,141,151

253,291,643
10,062,007
(4,432,545)
(270,000)
258,651,105

*

Represent surplus on valuation carried out in 1992 (see Note 2.6).

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement Of Cash Flow
For The Year Ended 31 December 2010
2010
RM

2009
RM

6,052,254

13,465,565

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Inventories written off
Bad debts written off
Impairment loss for trade and other receivables
Provision for short term accumulating
compensated absences
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest income
Interest expenses
Operating profit before working capital changes
Decrease in receivables
Decrease in inventories
Increase/(decrease) in payables
Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Taxes paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

6,269,616
2,981
2,923
77,809

6,274,969
881
3,540
-

25,528
(37,120)
(624,645)
95,377
11,864,723
835,975
43,039
150,806
12,894,543
(95,377)
(1,977,278)
10,821,888

32,168
(10,000)
(317,547)
61,126
19,510,702
387,868
16,086
(600,434)
19,314,222
(61,126)
(2,529,827)
16,723,269

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

614,335
(1,802,193)
38,751
(1,149,107)

329,676
(1,596,111)
14,000
(1,252,435)

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the Company
Dividends paid to minority shareholders
Drawdown of revolving credit
Repayment of hire purchase and lease payables
Net cash used in financing activities

(4,432,545)
(165,000)
100,000
(98,612)
(4,596,157)

(4,432,545)
(270,000)
(199,016)
(4,901,561)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 18)

5,076,624
32,118,568
37,195,192

10,569,273
21,549,295
32,118,568

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement Of Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended 31 December 2010
Note

Revenue
Changes in inventories
Purchase of inventories
Other income
Staff costs
Depreciation
Other expenses
Operating profit
Finance costs
Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Profit net of tax, representing total
comprehensive income for the year

4

5
6

7
9
10

2010
RM
7,845,790
4,471
(773,036)
7,763,701
(4,042,584)
(2,713,465)
(3,506,545)
4,578,332
(550)
4,577,782
(175,834)

9,692,740
5,412
(1,072,070)
8,492,081
(4,359,254)
(2,744,539)
(3,493,859)
6,520,511
(5,070)
6,515,441
(360,427)

4,401,948

6,155,014

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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2009
RM

Statement Of Financial Position
As At 31 December 2010
Note

2010
RM

2009
RM

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries

13
14

102,717,545
90,413,113
193,130,658

104,833,004
86,994,307
191,827,311

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

15
16
17
18

109,691
732,093
3,967,338
38,839,185
43,648,307

105,220
1,275,696
11,445,159
33,938,878
46,764,953

236,778,965

238,592,264

197,002,000
9,559,627
9,927,308
216,488,935

197,002,000
9,559,627
9,957,905
216,519,532

22

17,924,500

18,263,018

20
23
24

241,703
1,949,686
174,141
2,365,530

50,825
342,894
3,011,954
404,041
3,809,714

20,290,030

22,072,732

236,778,965

238,592,264

Total assets
Equity and liabilities
Equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company
Share capital
Non-distributable reserves
Retained earnings
Total equity

19
25

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Current liabilities
Short term borrowings
Trade payables
Other payables
Tax payable

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
- 36 -

Statement Of Changes In Equity
For The Year Ended 31 December 2010

Share
capital
RM
(Note 19)

<---Non-distributable--->
Share
premium
Capital
reserve
reserve*
RM
RM

Distributable
Retained
earnings
RM
(Note 25)

Total
RM

Opening balance at 1 January 2010
Total comprehensive income
Dividends (Note 12)
Closing balance at 31 December 2010

197,002,000
197,002,000

2,394,693
2,394,693

7,164,934
7,164,934

9,957,905
4,401,948
(4,432,545)
9,927,308

216,519,532
4,401,948
(4,432,545)
216,488,935

Opening balance at 1 January 2009
Total comprehensive income
Dividends (Note 12)
Closing balance at 31 December 2009

197,002,000
197,002,000

2,394,693
2,394,693

7,164,934
7,164,934

8,235,436
6,155,014
(4,432,545)
9,957,905

214,797,063
6,155,014
(4,432,545)
216,519,532

*

Represent surplus on valuation carried out in 1992 (see Note 2.6).

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement Of Cash Flow
For The Year Ended 31 December 2010
2010
RM

2009
RM

4,577,782

6,515,441

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Provision for short term accumulating
compensated absences
Interest expense
Impairment of investment in subsidiary
Gross dividend income
Interest income
Operating profit before working capital changes
Decrease in receivables
Increase in inventories
Decrease in payables
Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Taxes paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

2,713,465

2,744,539

16,997
550
84,189
(4,067,800)
(624,645)
2,700,538
8,031,734
(4,471)
(1,180,456)
9,547,345
(550)
(744,252)
8,802,543

14,902
5,070
(4,650,000)
(317,547)
4,312,405
7,249,837
(5,412)
(219,085)
11,337,745
(5,070)
(675,411)
10,657,264

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of shares in a subsidiary
Net dividends received
Net cash generated from investing activities

614,335
(598,006)
(3,502,995)
4,067,800
581,134

329,676
(857,572)
4,650,000
4,122,104

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid
Repayment of hire purchase and lease payables
Net cash used in financing activities

(4,432,545)
(50,825)
(4,483,370)

(4,432,545)
(118,230)
(4,550,775)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 18)

4,900,307
33,938,878
38,839,185

10,228,593
23,710,285
33,938,878

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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1.

Corporate information
The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia,
and is listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 10th Floor, Hotel Grand Continental, Jalan Belia/ Jalan
Raja Laut, 50350 Kuala Lumpur.
The Group is principally engaged in all aspects of the hotel business, provision of limousine
services and hotel management services. The Company is principally engaged in all aspects
of the hotel business. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities
during the financial year.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance
with a resolution of the directors on 23 February 2011.

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs) and the Companies Act, 1965
in Malaysia. At the beginning of the current financial year, the Group and the Company
adopted new and revised FRS which are mandatory for the financial periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2010 as described fully in Note 2.2.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.
2.2 Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year
except as follows:
On 1 January 2010, the Group and the Company adopted the following new and
amended FRS and IC Interpretations mandatory for the financial periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2010.
FRSs, Amendments to FRSs and Interpretations
FRS 4
FRS 7
FRS 8
FRS 101
FRS 123
FRS 139

Insurance Contracts
Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Operating Segments
Presentation of Financial Statements
(as revised in 2010)
Borrowing Costs
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

- 39 -

Notes To The Financial Statements
31 December 2010
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (cont'd.)
FRSs, Amendments to FRSs and Interpretations (cont'd.)
Amendments to FRS 1
and FRS 127

Amendments to FRS 2
Amendments to FRS 132
Amendments to FRS 139,
FRS 7 and IC
Interpretation 9
Improvements to FRS issued in 2009
IC Interpretation 9
IC Interpretation 10
IC Interpretation 11
IC Interpretation 13
IC Interpretation 14

First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting
Standards and Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements: Cost of an Investment
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate
Share Based Payment Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations
Financial Instruments: Presentation
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, Disclosures and
Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
FRS 2: Group and Treasury Share
Transactions
Customer Loyalty Programmes
FRS 119: The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction

FRS 4 Insurance Contracts and TR i -3 Presentation of Financial Statements of Islamic
Financial Institutions will also be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010. These FRS are, however, not applicable to the Company.
Adoption of the above standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the
financial performance or position of the Group and the Company except for those
discussed below:
FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Prior to 1 January 2010, information about financial instruments was disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of FRS 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation . FRS 7 introduces new disclosures to improve the information about
financial instruments. It requires the disclosure of qualitative and quantitative
information about exposure to risks arising from financial instruments, including
specified minimum disclosures about credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including
sensitivity analysis to market risk.
The Group and the Company have applied FRS 7 prospectively in accordance with the
transitional provisions. Hence, the new disclosures have not been applied to the
comparatives. The new disclosures are included throughout the Group’s and the
Company's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (cont'd.)
FRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised)
The revised FRS 101 introduces changes in the presentation and disclosures of
financial statements. The revised Standard separates owner and non-owner changes in
equity. The statement of changes in equity includes only details of transactions with
owners, with all non-owner changes in equity presented as a single line. The Standard
also introduces the statement of comprehensive income, with all items of income and
expense recognised in profit or loss, together with all other items of recognised income
and expense recognised directly in equity, either in one single statement, or in two
linked statements. The Group and the Company have elected to present this statement
as one single statement.
In addition, a statement of financial position is required at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period following a change in accounting policy, the correction of an error or
the classification of items in the financial statements.
The revised FRS 101 also requires the Group to make new disclosures to enable users
of the financial statements to evaluate the Group’s objectives, policies and processes
for managing capital (see Note 32).
The revised FRS 101 was adopted retrospectively by the Group and the Company.
FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
FRS 139 establishes principles for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy and sell non-financial items. The Group and the
Company have adopted FRS 139 prospectively on 1 January 2010 in accordance with
the transitional provisions. The effects arising from the adoption of this Standard has
been accounted for by adjusting the opening balance of retained earnings as at 1
January 2010. Comparatives are not restated.
Amendments to FRS 117 Leases
Prior to 1 January 2010, for all leases of land and buildings, if title is not expected to
pass to the lessee by the end of the lease term, the lessee normally does not receive
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Hence, all leasehold
land held for own use was classified by the Group as operating lease and where
necessary, the minimum lease payments or the up-front payments made were allocated
between the land and the buildings elements in proportion to the relative fair values for
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease. The up-front payment represented prepaid lease payments and
were amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (cont'd.)
Amendments to FRS 117 Leases (cont'd.)
The amendments to FRS117 Leases clarify that leases of land and buildings are
classified as operating or finance leases in the same way as leases of other assets.
They also clarify that the present value of the residual value of the property in a lease
with a term of several decades would be negligible and accounting for the land element
as a finance lease in such circumstances would be consistent with the economic
position of the lessee. Hence, the adoption of the amendments to FRS 117 has resulted
in unexpired land lease to be reclassified as finance lease. The Group has applied this
change in accounting policy retrospectively and certain comparatives have been
restated. The following are effects to the consolidated statement of financial positions
as at 31 December 2010 arising from the above change in accounting policy:
Group
2010
RM
Increase/(decrease) in:
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments

3,880,076
(3,880,076)

The following comparatives have been restated:
As previously
stated
RM

Adjustments
RM

As restated
RM

Consolidated statement of financial
position
31 December 2009
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments

241,897,249
3,885,057

3,885,057
(3,885,057)

245,782,306
-

246,575,126
3,890,038

3,890,038
(3,890,038)

250,465,164
-

1 January 2009
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments

2.3 Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
The Group has not adopted the following standards and interpretations that have been
issued but not yet effective.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.3 Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective (cont'd.)
Effective for
financial
periods
beginning
on or after
FRS 1
FRS 3
FRS 127
IC Interpretation 12
IC Interpretation 16
IC Interpretation 17
Amendments to IC
Interpretation 9
Amendments to IC
Interpretation 15
IC Interpretation 4
IC Interpretation 18
Amendments to FRS 1

Amendments to FRS 1
Amendments to FRS 2
Amendments to FRS 7
IC Interpretation 19
Amendments to IC
Interpretation 14
FRS 124
IC Interpretation 15

First-time Adoption of Financial
Reporting Standards
Business Combinations
Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements
Service Concession Arrangements
Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation
Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners
Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives
Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate
Determining Whether an Arrangement
Contains a Lease
Transfers of Assets from Customers
Limited Exemption from Comparative
FRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters
Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters
Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions
Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments
Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirements
Related Party Disclosure
Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.3 Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective (cont'd.)
Except for the changes in accounting policies arising from the adoption of the new
disclosures required under the Amendments to FRS 7, the directors expect that the
adoption of other standards and interpretations above will have no material impact on
the financial statements in the period of the initial application.
2.4 Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at the reporting date. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
prepared for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies
are applied to like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.
Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for by applying the purchase method.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
Adjustments to those fair values relating to previously held interests are treated as a
revaluation and recognised in other comprehensive income. The cost of a business
combination is measured as the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of the assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued, plus
any costs directly attributable to the business combination. Any excess of the cost of
business combination over the Group’s share in the net fair value of the acquired
subsidiary’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is recorded as
goodwill on the statement of financial position. The accounting policy for goodwill is set
out in Note 2.21. Any excess of the Group’s share in the net fair value of the acquired
subsidiary’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
business combination is recognised as income in profit or loss on the date of
acquisition. When the Group acquires a business, embedded derivatives separated
from the host contract by the acquiree are reassessed on acquisition unless the
business combination results in a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under the contract.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.
2.5 Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for at cost less impairment losses.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Freehold land
and buildings of the Group, which represent hotel properties, are stated at valuation
carried out by the Government valuers in 1992 in connection with the listing exercise of
the holding company's shares. The directors have not adopted a policy of regular
revaluations of such assets and no later valuation has been recorded. As permitted
under the transitional provisions of IAS 16 (Revised): Property, Plant and Equipment,
these assets continue to be stated at their 1992 valuation less accumulated
depreciation. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Subsequent to recognition, plant and equipment are measured at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The policy for the
recognition and measurement of impairment losses is in accordance with Note 2.7.
It is the Group's policy to appraise the hotel properties periodically and at least once in
every five years by independent professional valuers based on open market value. Any
revaluation surplus is not recognised. A revaluation deficit is first offset against
unutilised previously revaluation surplus in respect of the same asset and the balance
is thereafter recognised in profit or loss. Upon disposal or retirement of an asset, any
revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset is transferred directly to retained
earnings.
Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated. Depreciation
of other property, plant and equipment is computed on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Hotel buildings
Other assets*
Motor vehicles
Crockeries, kitchenware and linen
*

2%
10% - 33%
20%
10%

Other assets comprise equipment, furniture, fixtures, fitting, renovation and
computers.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial
year-end, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (cont'd.)
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
derecognition of the asset is included in the profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised.
2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when an annual impairment
assessment for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units (“CGU”)).
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by
the asset are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of a CGU or groups of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to those units or groups of units and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or groups of units on a pro-rata basis.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for assets that are previously
revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case
the impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of
any previous revaluation.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is
measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation
increase. Impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.8 Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Group and the Company become a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in
the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.
The Group and the Company determine the classification of their financial assets at
initial recognition, and the categories include financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets.
Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as loans and receivables.
The Group and the Company have designated trade receivables, other receivables
and, cash and bank balances as loans and receivables.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through the
amortisation process.
Loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for those having
maturity dates later than 12 months after the reporting date which are classified as noncurrent.
A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from
the asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss.
2.9 Impairment of financial assets
The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.9 Impairment of financial assets (cont'd.)
To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial
assets has been incurred, the Group and the Company consider factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or
significant delay in payments. For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis based on similar risk characteristics.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's and the Company’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.
If any such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable becomes
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.
The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.
2.10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand that are readily
convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. These also include bank overdrafts that form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.
2.11 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of costs and net realisable value. The costs comprise
costs of purchase. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.12 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group and the Company have present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the
obligation can be estimated reliably.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value
of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
2.13 Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability.
Financial liabilities, within the scope of FRS 139, are recognised in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group and the Company become a party to
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Financial liabilities are classified
as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other financial liabilities.
(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities held for trading include derivatives entered into by the Group
and the Company that do not meet the hedge accounting criteria. Derivative
liabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently stated at fair value,
with any resultant gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or losses
on derivatives include exchange differences.
The Group and the Company have not designated any financial liabilities as at fair
value through profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.13 Financial liabilities (cont'd.)
(b) Other financial liabilities
The Group’s and the Company's other financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and loans and borrowings.
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting date.
For other financial liabilities, gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is extinguished.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
2.14 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of that asset.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs
are incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assets are substantially
completed for their intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest costs that the Group and the Company incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.15 Employee benefits
(i)

Short term benefits
Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an
expense in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees.
Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are
recognised as a liability when services are rendered by employees that increase
their entitlement to future compensated absences. Short term non-accumulating
compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences
occur. The estimated liability for leave is recognised for services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

(ii) Defined contribution plans
The Group and the Company participates in the national pension schemes as
defined by the laws of the countries in which it has operations. The Malaysian
companies in the Group make contributions to the Employee Provident Fund in
Malaysia, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined
contribution pension schemes are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related service is performed.
2.16 Leases
Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at
the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Any initial direct costs are also added to the amount capitalised. Lease
payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are charged to profit or loss. Contingent rents, if any, are
charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
Leases of land and buildings are classified as operating or finance leases in the same
way as leases of other assets and the land and buildings elements of a lease of land
and buildings are considered separately for the purposes of lease classification. All
leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:
-

Property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property is classified as an investment property on a property-by
property basis and, if classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held
under financial leases;
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.16 Leases (cont'd.)
-

Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease; is accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating lease.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straightline basis over the lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the
lessor is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straightline basis.
In the case of a lease of land and buildings, the minimum lease payments or the upfront payments made are allocated, whenever necessary, between the land and the
buildings elements in proportion to the relative fair values for leasehold interests in the
land element and buildings element of the lease at the inception of the lease. The upfront payment represents prepaid lease payments and are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
Assets acquired by way of hire purchase or finance leases are stated at an amount
equal to the lower of their fair values and the present value of the minimum lease
payments at the inception of the leases, less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The corresponding liability is included in the balance sheet as borrowings. In
calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments, the discount factor used
is the interest rate implicit in the lease, when it is practicable to determine; otherwise,
the entity’s incremental borrowing rate is used. Any initial direct costs are also added to
the carrying amount of such assets.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance costs and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. Finance costs, which represent the difference between the total
leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are recognised in the
profit or loss over the term of the relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
The depreciation policy for leased assets is consistent with that for depreciable
property, plant and equipment as described in Note 2.6.
Long term leasehold land is amortised over 783 years.
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2.17 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group and the revenue can be measured reliably.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.
(a) Rendering of services
Revenue from rental of hotel rooms and service apartments, sale of food and
beverage, rental of premises and other related income are recognised on an
accrual basis.
(b) Management Fee
Management fees are recognised when services are rendered.
(c) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive payment is
established.

2.18 Income taxes
(a) Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.
Current taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax
relates to items recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.
(b) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences at
the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.18 Income taxes (cont'd.)
(b) Deferred tax (cont'd.)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except:
(i)

where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

(ii) in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised except:
(i)

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

(ii) in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will
allow the deferred tax assets to be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.18 Income taxes (cont'd.)
(b) Deferred tax (cont'd.)
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
and deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill
on acquisition.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
2.19 Foreign currency
(i)

Functional and presentation currency
The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is also the Company’s functional currency.

(ii) Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in Ringgit Malaysia at rates
of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. At each balance sheet date,
foreign currency monetary items are translated into Ringgit Malaysia at exchange
ruling at that date. Non-monetary items initially dominated in foreign currencies,
which are carried at historical costs are translated using the historical rate as of the
date of acquisition. All exchange rate differences are taken to the statement of
comprehensive income for that period.
2.20 Affiliated companies
Affiliated companies refer to one of the Company’s substantial corporate shareholders
and directors related company, Hotel Grand Central Limited, a company incorporated in
Singapore, and its subsidiaries (“HGC Ltd Group”).
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd.)
2.21 Goodwill
Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired is allocated, from the
acquisition date, to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
The cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that the cash-generating unit may be
impaired, by comparing the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit, including the
allocated goodwill, with the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised for
goodwill are not reversed in subsequent periods.
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within
that cash-generating unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is
measured based on the relative fair values of the operations disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

3.

Significant accounting judgement and estimates
The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting
date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in the future.
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the balance sheet date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:
(a)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Freehold buildings are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Management estimates the useful lives of these buildings to be 50 years. The
carrying amount of buildings of the Group and of the Company at 31 December 2010
was RM207,707,050 (2009: RM212,402,462) and RM91,022,106 (2009:
RM93,147,895). Changes in the expected level of usage could impact the economic
useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation
charges could be revised.
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3.

Significant accounting judgement and estimates (cont'd.)
(a)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (cont'd.)
The cost of plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated economic useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives of these plant
and equipment to be within 3 to 10 years. These are common life expectancies applied
for the plant and machinery. Management reviews the residual values, useful lives and
depreciation methods at the end of each financial year and ensures consistencies with
previous estimates and patterns of consumptions of the economic benefits that
embodied the items in these assets. The carrying amount of the Group’s plant and
equipment at the reporting date is disclosed in Note 13. A 5% difference in the expected
useful lives of these assets from management’s estimates would result in RM78,710
(2009: RM78,978) variance in the Group’s profit for the year.

(b)

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based on the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
The total carrying amount of recognised tax losses, capital and investment allowance of
the Group was RM9,094,225 (2009: RM9,541,359) and the unrecognised tax losses,
unutilised capital and investment allowance of the Group was RM534,542 (2009:
RM493,337).

4.

Revenue
Revenue of the Group and of the Company consists of the following:
Group
2010
RM
Rental of hotel rooms and
service apartments
Sale of food and beverage
Rental income
Other related income

26,275,092
10,991,285
1,543,138
692,820
39,502,335
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2009
RM

31,295,211
15,388,916
1,493,366
968,955
49,146,448

Company
2010
RM

4,969,799
2,414,036
407,438
54,517
7,845,790

2009
RM

5,715,567
3,459,517
417,408
100,248
9,692,740

Notes To The Financial Statements
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5.

Other income
Group
2010
RM
Management fees
Realised gain on foreign
exchange
Impairment recovered
Interest income
Gain on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment
Gross dividend income
from subsidiaries
Sundry revenue

6.

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

-

-

2,431,151

3,022,025

7,153
88,245
624,645

6,501
317,547

4,758
28,825
624,645

5,162
317,547

37,120

10,000

-

-

1,196,357
1,953,520

1,535,838
1,869,886

4,067,800
606,522
7,763,701

4,650,000
497,347
8,492,081

Staff costs
Group
2010
RM
Wages and salaries
Employees provident fund
Social security costs
Short term accumulating
compensated absences
Other staff related
expenses

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

8,902,103
1,125,452
127,283

9,082,284
1,174,677
138,621

2,740,636
375,244
27,717

2,951,727
401,974
33,239

25,528

32,168

16,997

14,902

1,544,752
11,725,118

1,851,766
12,279,516

881,990
4,042,584

957,412
4,359,254

Included in staff costs of the Group and of the Company are executive directors’ salaries and
other emoluments amounting to RM730,640 (2009: RM730,640) as further disclosed in Note
8.
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7.

Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after charging:
Group
2010
RM
Auditors’ remuneration
Director’s fees (Note 8)
Impairment loss for trade
and other receivables
(Note 16 and Note 17)
Impairment loss for
investment in subsidiaries
Bad debts written off
Inventories written off

8.

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

155,500
163,000

138,500
163,000

42,500
157,000

38,000
157,000

77,809

-

-

-

2,923
2,981

3,540
881

84,189
-

-

Group
2010
RM

2009
RM

Directors' remuneration
Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

Directors of the Group and
the Company
Executive:
Salaries and other
emoluments
Fees

Non-executive:
Fees
Total

730,640
110,000
840,640

730,640
110,000
840,640

730,640
110,000
840,640

730,640
110,000
840,640

53,000

53,000

47,000

47,000

893,640

893,640

887,640

887,640
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8.

Directors' remuneration (cont'd.)
The number of directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the year fall within
the following bands is analysed below:
Number of Directors
2010
2009

9.

Executive directors:
RM100,001 - RM150,000
RM150,001 - RM200,000
RM250,001 - RM300,000

1
1
2

1
1
2

Non-executive directors:
Below RM50,000

3

3

Finance costs
Group
2010
RM
Interests on borrowings
Hire purchase and lease
interests

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

91,987

50,856

-

-

3,390
95,377

10,270
61,126

550
550

5,070
5,070

10. Income tax expense
Group
2010
RM
Current income tax:
Malaysian income tax
Overprovision in prior
years

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

1,722,946

2,757,877

611,119

901,359

(153,672)
1,569,274

(6,026)
2,751,851

(96,767)
514,352

(16,336)
885,023
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10. Income tax expense (cont'd.)
Group
2010
RM
Deferred tax (Note 22):
Relating to origination
and reversal of
temporary differences
Under/(over)provision in
prior years
Total income tax
expense

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

130,247

966,584

(343,543)

(294,827)

43,087
173,334

(314,877)
651,707

5,025
(338,518)

(229,769)
(524,596)

175,834

360,427

1,742,608

3,403,558

Domestic current income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 25% (2009:
25%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. The domestic statutory tax rate will be
maintained at 25%, effective year of assessment 2010.
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before taxation at the statutory
income tax rate to income tax expense at the effective tax rate of the Group and of the
Company is as follows:
Group
2010
RM
Profit before taxation
Taxation at Malaysian
statutory tax rate
of 25% (2009 : 25%)
Effect of income not subject
to tax
Effect of expenses not
deductible for tax
purposes
Under/(over)provision of
deferred tax in prior years
Overprovision of income
tax expenses in prior years
Deferred tax assets not
recognised during the
year
Tax expense for the year

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

6,052,254

13,465,565

4,577,782

6,515,441

1,513,064

3,366,391

1,144,446

1,628,860

(1,016,950)

(1,162,500)

(561)

-

330,389

346,661

43,087

(314,877)

(153,672)

10,301
1,742,608
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(6,026)

11,409
3,403,558

140,080

140,172

5,025

(229,769)

(96,767)

(16,336)

175,834

360,427
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11. Earnings per share
(a)

Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the financial year.
Group
2010
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company (RM)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
Basic earnings per share (sen)

(b)

4,200,415
197,002,000
2.1

2009

9,824,253
197,002,000
5.0

Diluted
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year have been adjusted for the
dilutive effects of all potential ordinary shares, i.e. warrants.
Group
2010
RM
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company
After-tax effect of interest income on proceeds from
assumed conversion of warrants
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company including assumed conversion

2009
RM

4,200,415

9,824,253

-

797,810

4,200,415

10,622,063

Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
Effects of dilution: Warrants
Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue and issuable
Diluted earnings per share (sen)
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197,002,000
-

197,002,000
39,398,000

197,002,000

236,400,000

2.1

4.5
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12. Dividends
At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting ("AGM"), a final dividend in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2010 of 3% less 25% taxation on 197,002,000 ordinary
shares amounting to a dividend payable of RM4,432,545 (2.25 sen net per ordinary share)
will be proposed for shareholders’ approval. The financial statements for the current financial
year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders,
will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year
ending 31 December 2011.

Dividends
in respect of year
2010
2009
RM
RM

2008
RM

Dividends
recognised in year
2010
2009
RM
RM

Recognised during the year:
Final dividend for 2008:
3% less 25% taxation,
on 197,002,000 ordinary
shares (2.25 sen per
share)

-

-

4,432,545

-

4,432,545

Final dividend for 2009:
3% less 25% taxation,
on 197,002,000 ordinary
shares (2.25 sen per
share)

-

4,432,545

-

4,432,545

-

Proposed for approval at
AGM (not recognised as
at 31 December 2010):
Final dividend for 2010:
3% less 25% taxation,
on 197,002,000 ordinary
shares (2.25 sen per
share)
4,432,545

-

-

-

-
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Group

Freehold
land and
buildings*
RM

Other
assets
RM

Crockeries,
kitchenware
and linen
RM

Leasehold
land**
RM

Motor
vehicles
RM

Total
RM

117,881,173
139,200,000

-

40,180,456
-

6,172,669
-

2,683,267
-

166,917,565
139,200,000

257,081,173
257,081,173

3,900,000
3,900,000
3,900,000

40,180,456
1,547,573
(49,100)
41,678,929

6,172,669
136,337
(2,590)
6,306,416

2,683,267
198,283
(207,833)
2,673,717

3,900,000
310,017,565
1,882,193
(256,933)
(2,590)
311,640,235

117,881,173
139,200,000

-

41,678,929
-

6,306,416
-

2,673,717
-

168,540,235
139,200,000

257,081,173

3,900,000
3,900,000

41,678,929

6,306,416

2,673,717

3,900,000
311,640,235

At 31 December 2010
Cost/valuation
At 1 January 2010
At cost
At valuation
Effects of adopting the
amendments to FRS 117
As restated
Additions
Disposals
Write-off
At 31 December 2010 (restated)
Representing:
At cost
At valuation
Effects of adopting the
amendments to FRS 117
At 31 December 2010 (restated)
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13. Property, plant and equipment (cont'd.)

Group (cont'd.)

Freehold
land and
buildings*
RM

Leasehold
land**
RM

Other
assets
RM

Crockeries,
kitchenware
and linen
RM

Motor
vehicles
RM

Total
RM

22,630,598

-

33,999,398

5,127,916

2,462,404

64,220,316

22,630,598
4,695,412
27,326,010

14,943
14,943
4,981
19,924

33,999,398
1,170,256
(49,100)
35,120,554

5,127,916
214,507
(2,590)
5,339,833

2,462,404
184,460
(206,202)
2,440,662

14,943
64,235,259
6,269,616
(255,302)
(2,590)
70,246,983

107,098,512
122,656,651
229,755,163

3,880,076
3,880,076

6,558,375
6,558,375

966,583
966,583

233,055
233,055

At 31 December 2010
Accumulated depreciated and
impairment losses
At 1 January 2010
Effects of adopting the
amendments to FRS 117
As restated
Charge for the year
Disposals
Write-off
At 31 December 2010 (restated)
Net carrying amount
At cost
At valuation
At 31 December 2010
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13. Property, plant and equipment (cont'd.)

Group (cont'd.)

Freehold
land and
buildings*
RM

Leasehold
land**
RM

Other
assets
RM

Crockeries,
kitchenware
and linen
RM

Motor
vehicles
RM

Total
RM

117,881,173
139,200,000

-

38,783,687
-

5,980,519
-

2,881,455
-

165,526,834
139,200,000

257,081,173
257,081,173

3,900,000
3,900,000
3,900,000

38,783,687
1,399,369
(2,600)
40,180,456

5,980,519
196,742
(4,592)
6,172,669

2,881,455
(198,188)
2,683,267

3,900,000
308,626,834
1,596,111
(198,188)
(7,192)
310,017,565

117,881,173
139,200,000

-

40,180,456
-

6,172,669
-

2,683,267
-

166,917,565
139,200,000

257,081,173

3,900,000
3,900,000

40,180,456

6,172,669

2,683,267

3,900,000
310,017,565

At 31 December 2009
Cost/valuation
At 1 January 2009
At cost
At valuation
Effects of adopting the
amendments to FRS 117
As restated
Additions
Disposals
Write-off
At 31 December 2009 (restated)
Representing:
At cost
At valuation
Effects of adopting the
amendments to FRS 117
At 31 December 2009 (restated)
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13. Property, plant and equipment (cont'd.)

Group (cont'd.)

Freehold
land and
buildings*
RM

Leasehold
land**
RM

17,935,186

-

17,935,186
4,695,412
22,630,598

9,962
9,962
4,981
14,943

109,255,044
125,195,531
234,450,575

3,885,057
3,885,057

Other
assets
RM

Crockeries,
kitchenware
and linen
RM

Motor
vehicles
RM

Total
RM

32,813,434

4,943,263

2,459,825

58,151,708

32,813,434
1,188,564
(2,600)
33,999,398

4,943,263
189,245
(4,592)
5,127,916

2,459,825
196,767
(194,188)
2,462,404

9,962
58,161,670
6,274,969
(194,188)
(7,192)
64,235,259

6,181,058
6,181,058

1,044,753
1,044,753

220,863
220,863

At 31 December 2009
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss
At 1 January 2009
Effects of adopting the
amendments to FRS 117
As restated
Charge for the year
Disposals
Write-off
At 31 December 2009 (restated)
Net carrying
amount
At cost
At valuation
At 31 December 2009 (restated)
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13. Property, plant and equipment (cont'd.)
Freehold
land and
buildings*
RM

Crockeries,
Other kitchenware
assets
and linen
RM
RM

Motor
vehicles
RM

Total
RM

Company
At 31 December 2010
Cost/valuation
At 1 January 2010
At cost
At valuation
Additions
At 31 December
2010

114,000,000
114,000,000
-

10,919,720
10,919,720
507,426

806,136
806,136
35,980

1,193,046
1,193,046
54,600

12,918,902
114,000,000
126,918,902
598,006

114,000,000

11,427,146

842,116

1,247,646

127,516,908

114,000,000

11,427,146
-

842,116
-

1,247,646
-

13,516,908
114,000,000

114,000,000

11,427,146

842,116

1,247,646

127,516,908

12,352,105
2,125,789

8,192,613
422,929

442,567
66,983

1,098,613
97,764

22,085,898
2,713,465

14,477,894

8,615,542

509,550

1,196,377

24,799,363

99,522,106

2,811,604
-

332,566
-

51,269
-

3,195,439
99,522,106

99,522,106

2,811,604

332,566

51,269

102,717,545

Representing:
At cost
At valuation
At 31 December
2010
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment losses
At 1 January 2010
Charge for the year
At 31 December
2010
Net carrying amount
At cost
At valuation
At 31 December
2010
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13. Property, plant and equipment (cont'd.)
Freehold
land and
buildings*
RM

Crockeries,
Other kitchenware
assets
and linen
RM
RM

Motor
vehicles
RM

Total
RM

Company (cont'd.)
At 31 December 2009
Cost/valuation
At 1 January 2009
At cost
At valuation
Additions
At 31 December
2009

114,000,000
114,000,000
-

10,175,376
10,175,376
744,344

692,908
692,908
113,228

1,193,046
1,193,046
-

12,061,330
114,000,000
126,061,330
857,572

114,000,000

10,919,720

806,136

1,193,046

126,918,902

114,000,000

10,919,720
-

806,136
-

1,193,046
-

12,918,902
114,000,000

114,000,000

10,919,720

806,136

1,193,046

126,918,902

10,226,316
2,125,789

7,720,712
471,901

390,149
52,418

1,004,182
94,431

19,341,359
2,744,539

12,352,105

8,192,613

442,567

1,098,613

22,085,898

101,647,895

2,727,107
-

363,569
-

94,433
-

3,185,109
101,647,895

101,647,895

2,727,107

363,569

94,433

104,833,004

Representing:
At cost
At valuation
At 31 December
2009
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment losses
At 1 January 2009
Charge for the year
At 31 December
2009
At cost
At cost
At valuation
At 31 December
2009
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13. Property, plant and equipment (cont'd.)
* Freehold land and buildings (hotel properties):
Freehold
land
RM

Freehold
buildings
RM

Total
RM

8,956,330
13,091,783
22,048,113

108,924,843
126,108,217
235,033,060

117,881,173
139,200,000
257,081,173

-

22,630,598
4,695,412
27,326,010

22,630,598
4,695,412
27,326,010

8,956,330
13,091,783
22,048,113

98,142,182
109,564,868
207,707,050

107,098,512
122,656,651
229,755,163

Group
At 31 December 2010
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2010/31 December 2010
At cost
At valuation

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2010
Depreciation charge for the year
At 31 December 2010
Net carrying amount
At cost
At valuation
At 31 December 2010
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13. Property, plant and equipment (cont'd.)
* Freehold land and buildings (hotel properties):
Freehold
land
RM

Freehold
buildings
RM

Total
RM

8,956,330
13,091,783
22,048,113

108,924,843
126,108,217
235,033,060

117,881,173
139,200,000
257,081,173

-

17,935,186
4,695,412
22,630,598

17,935,186
4,695,412
22,630,598

8,956,330
13,091,783
22,048,113

100,298,714
112,103,748
212,402,462

109,255,044
125,195,531
234,450,575

Group (cont'd.)
At 31 December 2009
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2009/31 December 2009
At cost
At valuation

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2009
Depreciation charge for the year
At 31 December 2009
Net carrying amount
At cost
At valuation
At 31 December 2009
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13. Property, plant and equipment (cont'd.)
* Freehold land and buildings (hotel properties):
Freehold
land
RM

Freehold
buildings
RM

Total
RM

8,500,000

105,500,000

114,000,000

-

12,352,105
2,125,789
14,477,894

12,352,105
2,125,789
14,477,894

8,500,000

91,022,106

99,522,106

8,500,000

105,500,000

114,000,000

-

10,226,316
2,125,789
12,352,105

10,226,316
2,125,789
12,352,105

8,500,000

93,147,895

101,647,895

Company
At 31 December 2010
Valuation
At 1 January 2010/31 December 2010
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2010
Depreciation charge for the year
At 31 December 2010
Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2010
At 31 December 2009
Valuation
At 1 January 2009/31 December 2009
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2009
Depreciation charge for the year
At 31 December 2009
Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2009
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13. Property, plant and equipment (cont'd.)
* Freehold land and buildings (hotel properties):
Had the revalued freehold land and buildings been carried at historical cost, the net book
value of the freehold land and buildings that would have been included in the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2010 would be
RM53,519,446 (2009: RM54,582,653) and RM37,117,225 (2009: RM37,874,280)
respectively.
(a)

Details of independent professional valuation of the hotel properties owned by the
Company and its subsidiaries are as follows:
Year of
Valuation

2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2009

Description of Properties

Freehold land and building at Kuala Lumpur
Freehold land and building at Kuala Lumpur
Freehold land and building at Malacca
Freehold land and building at Langkawi
Freehold land and building at Pahang
Freehold land and building at Terengganu
Leasehold land and building at Sarawak
Freehold land and building at Perak

Amount
RM
106,000,000
28,000,000
17,000,000
29,500,000
48,500,000
36,000,000
56,085,000
4,620,000

All freehold land and buildings were revalued by Rahim & Co Chartered Surveyors Sdn.
Bhd., an independent professional valuer except for a valuation of freehold land and
building at Perak, which was revalued by an independent valuer, PPC International
(Penang) Sdn. Bhd.. The valuations were made on an open market value on existing
use basis.
The surplus on valuation was not incorporated in the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company (see Note 2.6).
(b)

Included in property, plant and equipment of the Group and of the Company are
equipment held under hire purchase and lease arrangements with net book value
amounting to RM158,699 (2009: RM154,960) and RMNil (2009: RM94,433)
respectively.

(c)

During the year, the Group and the Company acquired property, plant and equipment
with an aggregate cost of RM1,882,193 (2009: RM1,596,111) and RM598,006 (2009:
RM857,572), of which RM80,000 (2009: RMNil) were acquired by means of finance
lease arrangements.
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13. Property, plant and equipment (cont'd.)
(d)

The net book value of hotel properties of certain subsidiaries pledged to banks for bank
borrowings extended to the Company and certain subsidiaries (see Note 20) are as
follows:
Group
2010
RM
Freehold land
Buildings

(e)

6,664,442
80,586,058
87,250,500

6,664,442
82,376,859
89,041,301

Included in property, plant and equipment are the following costs of fully depreciated
assets which are still in use:
Group
2010
RM
Other assets
Crockeries, kitchenware
and linen
Motor vehicles

**

2009
RM

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

30,402,217

29,879,403

7,343,231

6,418,274

4,370,350
2,326,704

3,648,072
1,781,431

238,112
1,193,046

238,112
720,892

The leasehold land with an aggregate carrying value of RM3,880,076 (2009:
RM3,885,057) is pledged as securities for borrowings (Note 20).

14. Investment in subsidiaries
Company
2010
RM
Unquoted shares:
At cost
At directors’ valuation - 1992

66,046,276
27,073,297
93,119,573
(2,706,460)
90,413,113

Less : Impairment losses

2009
RM

62,543,281
27,073,297
89,616,578
(2,622,271)
86,994,307

The unquoted shares at directors’ valuation relate to the Company’s investment in certain
subsidiaries which were revalued to reflect the higher net tangible asset values.
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14. Investment in subsidiaries (cont'd.)
Details of the subsidiaries, all of which are incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows:
Name of Company

Equity Interest
Principal Activities
2010
2009
%
%

Grand Central (K.L.)
Sdn. Bhd.

100.00

100.00

Hotelier

Grand Central Enterprises
(Malacca) Sdn. Bhd.

100.00

100.00

Hotelier

Hotel Grand Olympic
(M) Sdn. Bhd.

100.00

100.00

Dormant

Grand Central TransServices Sdn. Bhd.

100.00

100.00

Provision of limousine
services and online
reservation services

86.36

86.36

Hotelier

Grand Central Enterprises
(Pahang) Sdn. Bhd.

100.00

100.00

Hotelier

Grand Central Enterprises
(Trengganu) Sdn. Bhd.

100.00

100.00

Hotelier

Grand Central Enterprises
(Sarawak) Sdn. Bhd.

100.00

100.00

Hotelier

Grand Central Enterprises
(Perak) Sdn. Bhd.

100.00

100.00

Dormant

Grand Island Hotel
(Langkawi) Sdn. Bhd.

During the financial year, the Company acquired 3,502,995 additional ordinary share capital
of RM1.00 each in GCE (Perak) Sdn. Bhd, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
representing the additional issued and paid-up capital of the subsidiary, for a total cash
consideration of RM3,502,995.
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15. Inventories
Group
2010
RM

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

At cost:
Food and beverages
Consumables

165,606
297,350
462,956

180,072
328,904
508,976

58,444
51,247
109,691

44,744
60,476
105,220

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the financial year in the Group and
in the Company amounted to RM3,509,631 (2009: RM4,533,047) and RM768,565 (2009:
RM1,066,658) respectively.

16. Trade receivables
Group
2010
RM
Trade receivables
Less : Allowance for
impairment

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

2,954,204

3,782,861

732,093

1,304,521

(119,230)
2,834,974

(150,843)
3,632,018

732,093

(28,825)
1,275,696

The Group and the Company’s normal trade credit terms are 30 to 90 (2009: 30 to 90) days.
They are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on
initial recognition.
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk that may arise from exposures to a
single debtor or to groups of debtors.
Group
2010
RM
Neither past due nor impaired
1 to 30 days past due not impaired
31 to 60 days past due not impaired
61 to 90 days past due not impaired
More than 91 days past due not impaired

1,659,886
596,976
292,011
94,092
192,009
1,175,088
119,230
2,954,204

Impaired
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16. Trade receivables (cont'd.)
Company
2010
RM
Neither past due nor impaired
1 to 30 days past due not impaired
31 to 60 days past due not impaired
61 to 90 days past due not impaired
More than 91 days past due not impaired

314,009
131,570
107,863
38,656
139,995
418,084
732,093

Impaired

2009
RM

517,648
191,704
222,284
34,744
309,316
758,048
28,825
1,304,521

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors
with good payment records with the Company.
None of the Company’s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have been
renegotiated during the financial year.
Receivables that are past due but not impaired
The Group and the Company has trade receivables amounted to RM1,175,088 (2009:
RM1,706,373) and RM418,084 (2009: RM758,048) respectively, that are past due at the
reporting date but not impaired. The receivables that are past due but not impaired are
unsecured in nature.
Receivables that are impaired
The Company's trade receivables that have been impaired at the reporting date and the
movement of the allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:
Group
2010
RM
Trade receivables - nominal
amount
Less : Allowance for
impairment

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

119,230

150,843

-

28,825

(119,230)
-

(150,843)
-

-

(28,825)
-
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Movement in allowance accounts:
Group
2010
RM
At 1 January
Charge for the year (Note 7)
Recovered (Note 5)
Written Off
At 31 December

150,843
56,632
(88,245)
119,230

2009
RM
204,483
(53,640)
150,843

Company
2010
RM
28,825
(28,825)
-

2009
RM
72,892
(44,067)
28,825

17. Other receivables
Group
2010
RM
Due from subsidiaries
Due from affiliated
companies
Deposits
Prepayments
Rental receivables
Sundry receivables
Less : Allowance for
impairment

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

-

-

3,427,006

11,029,307

336,986
266,731
164,569
12,697
280,664
1,061,647

246,847
226,657
148,871
13,288
514,160
1,149,823

330,893
123,983
25,923
2,267
57,266
3,967,338

235,653
103,800
40,560
2,266
33,573
11,445,159

(21,177)
1,040,470

1,149,823

3,967,338

11,445,159

The amounts due from affiliated companies of the Group and of the Company are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.
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Other receivables that are impaired
At the reporting date, the Group have provided an allowance of RM21,177 (2009: RMNil) for
impairment of sundry receivables with a nominal amount of RM280,664 (2009: RM514,160).
Movement in allowance accounts:
Group
2010
RM
At 1 January
Charge for the year (Note 7)
At 31 December

21,177
21,177

18. Cash and cash equivalents
Group
2010
RM
Cash on hand and at banks
Deposits with licensed bank
Cash and bank balances

8,142,427
37,592,844
45,735,271

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

8,546,504
31,330,231
39,876,735

1,246,341
37,592,844
38,839,185

2009
RM

2,608,647
31,330,231
33,938,878

The range of interest rates per annum of deposits were as follows:
2010
%
Licensed bank

1.90 - 3.00

2009
%
1.90 - 2.90

The range of maturities of deposits as at balance sheet date was as follows:

Licensed bank
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18. Cash and cash equivalents (cont'd.)
For the purpose of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents comprise the
following as at the balance sheet date:
Group
2010
RM
Cash and bank balances
Bank overdrafts (Note 20)
Total cash and cash
equivalents

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

45,735,271
(8,540,079)

39,876,735
(7,758,167)

38,839,185
-

33,938,878
-

37,195,192

32,118,568

38,839,185

33,938,878

19. Share capital
Group/Company
Number of ordinary
shares of RM1 each
Amount
2010
2009
2010
RM

2009
RM

Authorised

300,000,000

300,000,000

300,000,000

300,000,000

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January/31 December

197,002,000

197,002,000

197,002,000

197,002,000

During the financial year 2000, RM39,400,000 nominal value of ICULS were issued with
39,400,000 detachable warrants.
The main features of the warrants were as follows:
(a)

Each warrant carries the rights to subscribe for one new ordinary share of RM1 each in
the Company.
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(b)

The warrants may be exercised at any time during a period of ten years commencing
from the date of issue of the warrants. The exercise price of the warrants is fixed
based on a multiple step-up basis, as follows:
Warrant exercise period

RM

First to third year
Fourth to sixth year
Seventh to tenth year

1.00
1.20
1.35

(c)

Any warrant which have not been exercised at the date of maturity will lapse and cease
to be valid for any purpose.

(d)

The shares arising from the exercise of warrants shall rank pari passu in all respect with
the ordinary shares of the Company except that they shall not be entitled to any rights,
dividends or distributions unless the exercise of warrants was effected before the book
closure of the share registers for the determination of the entitlement to such rights or
distributions.

As at 17 February 2010, 39,398,000 (2009 : 39,398,000) warrants remain unexercised.
The warrants remaining unexercised on the expiry date, 17 February 2010, had become null
and void and ceased to be exercisable. The warrants had been removed from the official list
of Bursa Securities with effect from 9.00 a.m. on 18 February 2010.

20. Borrowings
Group
2010
RM

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

Short term borrowings
Secured:
Bank overdrafts
Revolving credit
Hire purchase and lease
payables (Note 21)

8,540,079
100,000

7,758,167
-

-

-

34,931
8,675,010

95,654
7,853,821

-

50,825
50,825
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20. Borrowings (cont'd.)
Group
2010
RM

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

Long term borrowings
(secured)
Hire purchase and lease
payables (Note 21)

58,605

16,494
16,494

-

-

8,540,079
100,000

7,758,167
-

-

-

93,536
8,733,615

112,148
7,870,315

-

50,825
50,825

8,640,079

7,758,167

-

-

Total borrowings
Bank overdrafts
Revolving credit
Hire purchase and lease
payables (Note 21)

Maturity of borrowings
(excluding hire purchase
and lease payables):
Within 1 year

The range of interest rates for borrowings, excluding hire purchase and lease payables, were
as follows:
Group
2010
2009
%
%
per annum
per annum
Bank overdrafts
Revolving credit

6.80 - 8.05
4.30

6.80 - 8.25
-

Company
2010
2009
%
%
per annum
per annum
-

-

The secured bank overdrafts of the Group are pledged against fixed and floating charges
over the hotel properties of certain subsidiaries (see Notes 13).
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21. Hire purchase and finance lease payables
Group
2010
RM

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

Minimum lease payments:
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not
later than 2 years
Later than 2 years and not
later than 5 years
Less: Future
finance charges
Present value of finance
lease liabilities

39,306

98,267

-

51,375

22,404

16,903

-

-

41,058
102,768

115,170

-

51,375

(9,232)

(3,022)

-

(550)

93,536

112,148

-

50,825

34,931

95,654

-

50,825

19,612

16,494

-

-

38,993
93,536

112,148

-

50,825

34,931

95,654

-

50,825

58,605
93,536

16,494
112,148

-

50,825

Present value of finance
lease liabilities:
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not
later than 2 years
Later than 2 years and not
later than 5 years

Analysed as:
Due within 12 months
(Note 20)
Due after 12 months
(Note 20)

The hire purchase and lease payables bear effective interest rate of 5.64% to 5.67% (2009:
5.64% to 6.14%) per annum.
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22. Deferred tax
Group
2010
RM
At 1 January
Recognised in profit
or loss (Note 10)
At 31 December

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

17,187,537

16,535,830

18,263,018

18,787,614

173,334
17,360,871

651,707
17,187,537

(338,518)
17,924,500

(524,596)
18,263,018

(49,850)
17,974,350
17,924,500

(24,554)
18,287,572
18,263,018

Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows:
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

(9,198,435)
26,559,306
17,360,871

(9,622,814)
26,810,351
17,187,537

The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and assets during the financial
year are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities of the Group:
Revaluation
of hotel
properties
RM

Accelerated
capital
allowances
RM

Total
RM

At 1 January 2010
Recognised in profit or loss
At 31 December 2010

15,697,798
(340,464)
15,357,334

11,112,553
89,419
11,201,972

26,810,351
(251,045)
26,559,306

At 1 January 2009
Recognised in profit or loss
At 31 December 2009

16,062,370
(364,572)
15,697,798

11,392,357
(279,804)
11,112,553

27,454,727
(644,376)
26,810,351
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22. Deferred tax (cont'd.)
Deferred tax assets of the Group:
Unused
tax losses,
unabsorbed
capital and
investment tax
allowances
RM

Provisions
RM

Total
RM

At 1 January 2010
Recognised in profit or loss
At 31 December 2010

(9,541,359)
447,134
(9,094,225)

(81,455)
(22,755)
(104,210)

(9,622,814)
424,379
(9,198,435)

At 1 January 2009
Recognised in profit or loss
At 31 December 2009

(10,888,025)
1,346,666
(9,541,359)

(30,872)
(50,583)
(81,455)

(10,918,897)
1,296,083
(9,622,814)

Deferred tax liabilities of the Company:
Revaluation
of hotel
properties
RM

Accelerated
capital
allowances
RM

Total
RM

At 1 January 2010
Recognised in profit or loss
At 31 December 2010

14,582,257
(316,213)
14,266,044

3,705,315
2,991
3,708,306

18,287,572
(313,222)
17,974,350

At 1 January 2009
Recognised in profit or loss
At 31 December 2009

14,880,532
(298,275)
14,582,257

3,885,420
(180,105)
3,705,315

18,765,952
(478,380)
18,287,572
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22. Deferred tax (cont'd.)
Deferred tax assets of the Company:
Provisions
Total
RM
At 1 January 2010
Recognised in profit or loss
At 31 December 2010

(24,554)
(25,296)
(49,850)

At 1 January 2009
Recognised in profit or loss
At 31 December 2009

21,662
(46,216)
(24,554)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:
Group
2010
RM
Unused tax losses
Unabsorbed capital allowances
Other deductible temporary differences

177,543
356,999
534,542

2009
RM
155,818
292,590
44,929
493,337

The availability of the unabsorbed tax losses for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
Group are subject to there being no substantial changes in shareholdings of the Group under
Section 44(5A) & (5B) of Income Tax Act,1967. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these items as there is no probable expectation that future taxable
income will be sufficient to allow the benefit to be realised.

23. Trade payables
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the normal trade credit terms granted to the
Group and the Company ranges from 30 to 90 (2009: 30 to 90) days.
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24. Other payables
Group
2010
RM
Due to subsidiaries
Due to affiliated companies
Sundry payables
Accruals

563
3,294,765
1,897,712
5,193,040

2009
RM
2,642
3,345,878
1,681,408
5,029,928

Company
2010
RM
56,928
1,296,578
596,180
1,949,686

2009
RM

867,851
1,648,383
495,720
3,011,954

The amounts due to affiliated companies of the Group are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.
The amounts due to subsidiaries of the Company are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

25. Retained earnings
Prior to the year of assessment 2008, Malaysian companies adopted the full imputation
system. In accordance with the Finance Act 2007 which was gazetted on 28 December 2007,
companies shall not be entitled to deduct tax on dividend paid, credited or distributed to its
shareholders, and such dividends will be exempted from tax in the hands of the shareholders
("single tier system"). However, there is a transitional period of six years, expiring on 31
December 2013, to allow companies to pay franked dividends to their shareholders under
limited circumstances. Companies also have an irrevocable option to disregard the Section
108 balance and opt to pay dividends under the single tier system. The change in the tax
legislation also provides for the Section 108 balance to be locked-in as at 31 December 2007
in accordance with Section 39 of the Finance Act 2007.
The Company did not elect for the irrevocable option to disregard the Section 108 balance.
Accordingly, during the transitional period, the Company may utilise the credit in the Section
108 balance as at 31 December 2010 to distribute cash dividend payments to ordinary
shareholdings as defined under the Finance Act 2007. As at 31 December 2010, the
Company has sufficient credit in the Section 108 balance to pay franked dividends out of its
entire retained earnings.
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26. Commitments
Group
2010
RM
Capital expenditure
Approved and
contracted for:
Equipment

-

2009
RM

488,400

Company
2010
RM

-

2009
RM

488,400

27. Contingent liabilities
Company
2010
RM
Guarantees extended to financial institutions
for facilities granted to subsidiaries

13,800,000

2009
RM

13,800,000

28. Significant related party transactions
Group
2010
RM
Management fees receivable
from subsidiaries
Dividends from subsidiaries:
- Grand Central Enterprises
(Malacca) Sdn. Bhd.
- Grand Island Hotel
(Langkawi) Sdn. Bhd.
- Grand Central Enterprises
(Pahang) Sdn. Bhd.
Commission on online
reservation services
charged by a subsidiary

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

-

-

2,431,151

3,022,025

-

-

608,800

900,000

-

-

1,045,000

1,710,000

-

-

2,414,000

2,040,000

60,283

87,340

17,221

33,046

The directors are of the opinion that with the exception of dividends, the above transactions
have been established on negotiated terms and conditions.
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28. Significant related party transactions (cont'd.)
Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management during the year were as follows:
Group
2010
RM

Short term employee
benefits
Employees provident fund

1,455,521
176,692
1,632,213

2009
RM

1,479,341
187,296
1,666,637

Company
2010
RM

845,806
106,628
952,434

2009
RM

842,382
106,507
948,889

Included in the total key management personnel of the Group and of the Company are
directors' fees and remuneration (excluding non-executive directors) of RM840,640 (2009:
RM840,640).

29. Financial information by segment
The Group’s activities are principally in the hotel business conducted in Malaysia and for that
reason, separate segment information is not provided.

30. Fair value of financial instruments
(a)

Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and
whose carrying amounts are not reasonable approximation of fair value:

Note

Group
2010
Carrying
amount
Fair value

Company
2010
Carrying
amount
Fair value

Financial liabilities
Hire purchase
payables

21

93,536
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30. Fair value of financial instruments (cont'd.)

Note

Group
2009
Carrying
amount
Fair value

Company
2009
Carrying
amount
Fair value

Financial liabilities
Hire purchase
payables
(b)

21

112,148

113,285

50,825

51,764

The following are classes of financial instruments whose carrying amounts are
reasonable approximation of fair value due to the relatively short term nature on the
reporting date:
Note
Financial asset
Trade receivables
Other receivables

16
17

Financial liability
Long term borrowings
Short term borrowings
Trade payables
Other payables

20
20
23
24

31. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s financial risk management policies seek to ensure that adequate financial
resources are available for the development of the Group’s businesses whilst managing its
interest rate, foreign exchange, market, liquidity and credit risks. These resources are
managed and allocated centrally to ensure that all business units within the Group maintain
the required level of capital and liquidity. The Group operates within clearly defined
guidelines that are approved by the directors. It is, and has been throughout the year under
review, the Group’s policy that no trading in derivative financial instruments shall be
undertaken.
(a)

Foreign exchange and market risks
The Company is not exposed to foreign exchange and market risks as it is not involve
in any activity which give rise to material impact from these risks.
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd.)
(b)

Interest rate risk
The Group has minimal exposure to interest rate risk as its interest-bearing borrowing
relates to hire purchase arrangement of which the interest rate is fixed at the inception
of the arrangement.

(c)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should
a counterparty default on its obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises
primarily from trade and other receivables. For other financial assets (including cash
and bank balances), the Group minimise credit risk by dealing exclusively with
reputable financial institutions.
At the reporting date, the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.

(d)

Liquidity and cash flow risk
The Group actively manages its debt maturity profile, operating cash flows and the
availability of funding so as to ensure that all refinancing, repayment and funding needs
are met. As part of its overall prudent liquidity management, the Group maintains
sufficient level of cash to meet its working capital requirements.
Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s liabilities at the reporting
date based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.
On Demand
or Within
One Year
RM

One to
five years
RM

Total
RM

8,679,385
1,648,501
5,193,040
15,520,926

63,462
63,462

8,742,847
1,648,501
5,193,040
15,584,388

2010
Group:
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other payables
Total undiscounted financial liabilities
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd.)
(d)

Liquidity and cash flow risk (cont'd.)
On Demand
or Within
One Year
RM
2010 (cont'd.)
Company:
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables
Total undiscounted financial liabilities

241,703
1,949,686
2,191,389

32. Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains an
optimal capital structure in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year.
The debt to equity ratio as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as follows:

Note

Borrowings
Trade payables
Other payables
Net debt

2009
RM

Company
2010
RM

2009
RM

8,733,615
1,648,501
5,193,040
15,575,156

7,870,315
1,635,279
5,029,928
14,535,522

241,703
1,949,686
2,191,389

50,825
342,894
3,011,954
3,405,673

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company represents
total capital

256,277,824

256,509,954

216,488,935

216,519,532

Capital and net debt

271,852,980

271,045,476

218,680,324

219,925,205

Gearing ratio

20
23
24

Group
2010
RM

6%
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33. Supplementary information – breakdown of retained profits into realised and
unrealised
The breakdown of the retained profits of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December
2010 into realised and unrealised profits is presented in accordance with the directive issued
by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad dated 25 March 2010 and prepared in accordance with
Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or
Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing
Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
Group
RM
Total retained profits
- Realised
- Unrealised
Less: Consolidation adjustments
Retained profits as per financial statements
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63,842,570
(14,442,385)
49,400,185
2,022,799
51,422,984

Company
RM

24,952,945
(15,025,637)
9,927,308
9,927,308

Notice Of Annual General Meeting
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Twenty Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Company will
be held at the Grand Hall, 10th Floor, Hotel Grand Continental, Jalan Belia/Jalan Raja Laut,
50350 Kuala Lumpur on Tuesday, 26 April 2011 at 9.30 a.m. to transact the following
businesses :
1.

2.

3.

4.

5.
6.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2010 together with the Reports of Directors’ and
Auditors’ thereon.

(Resolution 1)

To re-elect Tan Teck Lin, the director who retires in accordance with
Article 80 of the Company’s Articles of Association, being eligible,
offers himself for re-election.

(Resolution 2)

To re-appoint the following directors who are over the age of
seventy (70) years, to hold office until the next Annual General
Meeting pursuant to Section 129 (6) of the Companies Act, 1965.
a) Tan Eng Teong

(Resolution 3)

b) Wong Tow Cheong
c) Tan Sri Dato Sri Abang Haji Ahmad Urai Bin Datu Hakim Abang
Haji Mohideen

(Resolution 4)
(Resolution 5)

To approve and declare a First and Final Dividend of 3% (less
Income Tax at 25%) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

(Resolution 6)

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RM157,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2010.

(Resolution 7)

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution :
“THAT Messrs Ernst & Young, the retiring Auditors, be and are
hereby re-appointed Auditors of the Company to hold office until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting at a fee to be
determined by the Directors at a later date.”

(Resolution 8)

Special Business
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions :
7.

Ordinary Resolution - Authority to Issue Share
“THAT pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965, the
Directors be and are hereby authorised to issue and allot shares in
the Company at any time until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting and upon such terms and conditions and for such
purposes as the Directors may in their absolute discretion, deem fit
provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued does
not exceed ten per centum of the issued share capital of the
Company for the time being, subject always to the approval of all
the relevant regulatory bodies being obtained for such allotment
and issue.”
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8.

Special Resolution – Proposed Amendment to the Articles of
Association of the Company
“That the existing Article 132 of the Articles of Association of the
Company be deleted in its entirety and to adopt the following new
Article 132:132.

Dividend payable
Any dividend, interest or other money payable in cash in
respect of shares may be paid by way of cheque or warrant
sent through the post directed to the registered address of
the holders or to such person and to such address as the
holder may in writing direct; or by way of electronic transfer
or remittance to bank account as designated by the holder
entitled to such payment from time to time and such
payment shall operate as a good and full discharge by the
Company in respect of the dividend represented thereby.
Every such cheque or warrant or electronic transfer or
remittance shall be sent/made at the risk of the person
entitled to the money thereby represented. The Company
shall not be responsible for any inaccurate details supplied
by the Members or any errors, delay or power or electronic
failure encountered during or in the course of transmission
or postal order.”

9.

(Resolution 10)

To transact any other business for which due notice shall have
been given.

NOTICE OF BOOKS CLOSURE
NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN that a first and final dividend of 3% (less Income Tax at
25%) for the financial year ended 31 December 2010, if approved by the shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 19 May 2011 to the shareholders whose names appear
in the Record of Depositors of the Company at the close of business on 29 April 2011.
A Depositor shall qualify for entitlement only in respect of :a)

shares transferred into the depositor's securities account before 4.00 p.m. on 29 April 2011
in respect of ordinary transfers ; and

b)

shares bought on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis
according to the Rules of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
TAN KOK AUN (MACS 01564)
WONG WAI YIN (MAICSA 7003000)
Company Secretaries
Kuala Lumpur
4 April 2011
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Notes:
1.

A Member holding one thousand (1,000) ordinary shares or less may appoint only one (1)
proxy to attend and vote at a general meeting who shall represent all the shares held by
such Member. A Member holding more than one thousand (1,000) ordinary shares may
appoint up to two (2) proxies to attend and vote at the same meeting. Where a Member
appoints two (2) proxies, he shall specify the proportion of his shareholdings to be
represented by each proxy.

2.

A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and need not be any of the
persons prescribed by Section 149(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 1965.

3.

The instrument appointing a proxy must be under the hand of the appointer or his attorney
duly authorised in writing. Where the instrument appointing a proxy is executed by a
corporation, it must be executed either under its seal or under the hand of any officer or
attorney duly authorised.

4.

The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Company's Registered Office
at No. 1 & 1A, 2nd Floor (Room 2), Jalan Ipoh Kecil, 50350 Kuala Lumpur, at least fortyeight (48) hours before the time for holding the meeting or at any adjournment thereof.

EXPLANATORY NOTES ON SPECIAL BUSINESS
i)

Authority to Directors to Issue Shares
The proposed adoption of Ordinary Resolution 9 in item 7 is primarily to give flexibility to the
Board of Directors to issue and allot shares at any time in their absolute discretion without
convening a general meeting. The authorisation will, unless revoked or varied by the
Company at a general meeting, expire at the next Annual General Meeting. This is a
renewal of a general mandate. The Company did not utilise the mandate granted in the
preceding year’s Annual General Meeting. In order to avoid any delay and cost involved in
convening a general meeting, it is thus appropriate to seek members’ approval.

ii)

Proposed Amendment to the Articles of Association of the Company
The proposed Special Resolution 10 in item 8 is to allow the Company to pay its cash
dividend by way of electronic transfer or remittance.
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Of Annual General Meeting
1.

Directors who are standing for re-election/re-appointment
The Directors who are standing for re-election/re-appointment at the Twenty Sixth Annual
General Meeting of the Company are as follows:
Pursuant to Article 80 of the Company’s Articles of Association
a) Tan Teck Lin
Pursuant to Section 129 (6) of the Companies Act, 1965
a) Tan Eng Teong
b) Wong Tow Cheong
c) Tan Sri Dato Sri Abang Haji Ahmad Urai Bin Datu Hakim Abang Haji Mohideen

2.

Profiles of Directors who are standing for re-election/re-appointment
The profiles of Directors standing for re-election/re-appointment are set out on pages 8
and 9 of this Annual Report.

3.

Details of Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings
The details of attendance of directors at board meetings are stated on page 10 of this
Annual Report.

4.

Details of the Twenty Sixth Annual General Meeting
Date

Time

Place

26 April 2011

9.30 a.m.

Grand Hall, 10th Floor, Hotel Grand Continental
Jalan Belia/Jalan Raja Laut
50350 Kuala Lumpur
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Properties Owned By The Group
Locations

Description

Tenure

Area
Square
Metres

Approximate
Age of
Building
Years

Book
Value
RM’000

Date of
Valuation

Lot 604, Section 46
Town of Kuala Lumpur
Wilayah Persekutuan

Hotel Grand
Freehold
Continental
Kuala Lumpur

2,498.91

24

99,522

23 July
1992

Lot 787, 788, 789,
816, 817 and 818
Section 46
Town of Kuala Lumpur
Wilayah Persekutuan

Hotel Grand
Freehold
Central
Kuala Lumpur

755.39

33

15,239

23 July
1992

Lot No. 231
Town Area XVIII (18)
District of Melaka
Tengah
State of Melaka

Hotel Grand
Continental
Melaka

Freehold

2,114.50

25

12,767

23 July
1992

SPK 60, Lot 398
Mukim of Kuah
District of Langkawi
Kedah

Hotel Grand
Continental
Langkawi

Freehold

5,767.42

18

13,924

-

CT 4741, Lot 2
Section 20
Town of Kuantan
District of Kuantan
Pahang

Hotel Grand
Continental
Kuantan

Freehold

6,106.64

16

28,087

-

Lot 42, Section 46
Kuching Town
Land District
Sarawak

Hotel Grand
Continental
Kuching

Long Term
Leasehold

5,342.00

15

35,799

-

PT 1645C, Lot 4023
Town and District of
Kuala Terengganu
Terengganu

Hotel Grand
Continental
Terengganu

Freehold

3,612.00

14

24,018

-

CT No. 18899
Lot 2636S
Town of Ipoh
District of Kinta
State of Perak

Vacant Land

Freehold

4,180.69

N/A

4,278

-

N/A - Not applicable
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Analysis Of Shareholdings

As At 28 February 2011

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDERS
Size of Shareholdings

No. of
Shareholders

%

No. of
Shares

%

113
1,995
3,568
595

1.79
31.49
56.32
9.39

3,795
1,919,835
13,862,658
15,088,651

0.00
0.98
7.04
7.66

61
3
6,335

0.96
0.05
100.00

22,998,000
143,129,061
197,002,000

11.67
72.65
100.00

No. of
Shares

%

86,035,118
46,864,843
10,229,100
3,345,000
2,500,000

43.67
23.79
5.19
1.70
1.27

1,345,800

0.68

1,183,200

0.60

1,000,000

0.51

631,000
557,000
544,200
543,750
515,100
432,500
422,600
404,000
374,300
355,700

0.32
0.28
0.28
0.28
0.26
0.22
0.21
0.21
0.19
0.18

350,000
342,000
331,200
319,700
311,000
300,000
280,000
279,000
268,000
262,700
250,000
233,700
160,810,511

0.18
0.17
0.17
0.16
0.16
0.15
0.14
0.14
0.14
0.13
0.13
0.12
81.63

1 - 99		
100 - 1,000		
1,001 - 10,000		
10,001 - 100,000		
100,001 - 9,850,099 		
(Less than 5% of issued shares)
9,850,100 and above
Total
Class Of Share : RM1 Ordinary Share
Voting Rights : 1 Vote Per Ordinary Share

THIRTY LARGEST SECURITIES ACCOUNT HOLDERS
No.

Name

1
2
3
4
5
6

Tan Chee Hoe & Sons Sdn Bhd		
Hotel Grand Central Limited		
Tan Chee Hoe & Sons Sdn Bhd		
Harichandra Holdings Sdn Bhd		
Chelliah Holdings Sdn Bhd		
JF Apex Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd		
- Pledged Securities Account for Teo Kwee Hock (Margin)
JF Apex Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd		
- Pledged Securities Account for Teo Siew Lai (Margin)
Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd		
- Pledged Securities Account for Chelliah Holdings		
Sdn Bhd (SRB/PDN/PMS)		
Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 		
- Pledged Securities Account for Chin Kiam Hsung		
Tan Hwa Lian		
Cheng Hon Sang		
Cheong Hok An		
Ensin Corporation Sdn Bhd		
Kheng Moon Eng @ Koong Mei Yoong		
Lok Eng Kiat		
Ng Ah Goo @ Michael Ng		
Cheng Hon Sang		
Lee Siew Hoon		
Mercsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd		
- Pledged Securities Account for Siow Wong Yen @
Siow Kwang Hwa		
Chin Kian Fong		
Hong Thian Hock		
Yap Nam Hooi		
Tan Teck Lin Holdings Sdn Bhd		
Genting Perwira Sdn Bhd		
Ooi Pitt Lock		
Chwa Eng Wan		
Tan Hwa Kheong		
Koo Boon Long		
Tan Hwa Kheong		
Kow Kek Leong
Total		

7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
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List Of Directors’ & Substantial Holdings
As At 28 February 2011
Directors’ Holdings (as per Register of Directors’ Holdings)
No. of Ordinary Shares Held
Directors

Direct

%

Indirect

%

Tan Eng Teong

13,000

0.01

143,733,061(1)

72.96

(2)

73.22

Tan Teck Lin

13,000

0.01

144,241,961

Tan Eng How

32,000

0.02

143,157,061(1)

72.67

80,000

0.04

(3)

998,900

0.51

Wong Tow Cheong

-

-

-

-

Lee Wai Kuen

-

-

-

-

Tan Hwa Imm
Tan Sri Dato Sri Abang Haji Ahmad Urai
bin Datu Hakim Abang Haji Mohideen

Substantial Holdings (as per Register of Substantial Holdings)
No. of Ordinary Shares Held
Substantial Shareholders

Direct

%

Indirect

%

Tan Chee Hoe & Sons Sdn. Bhd.

96,264,218

48.86

46,864,843(4)

23.79

Hotel Grand Central Limited

46,864,843

23.79

-

-

143,129,061(5)

72.65

311,000

0.16

(5)

72.65

-

-

143,129,061(5)

72.65

-

-

(5)

72.65

13,000

0.01

143,733,061(1)

72.96

(2)

73.22

Tan Eng Teong Holdings Sdn. Bhd.
Tan Teck Lin Holdings Sdn. Bhd.
Aditan Holdings Sdn. Bhd.
Bizest Sdn. Bhd.
Tan Eng Teong

143,129,061
143,129,061

-

Tan Teck Lin

13,000

0.01

144,241,961

Tan Eng How

32,000

0.02

143,157,061(1)

72.67

-

(1)

72.68

Tan Eng Sin

2,000

143,187,061

(1) Indirect interest by virtue of his interest in Tan Chee Hoe & Sons Sdn. Bhd., Hotel Grand
Central Limited and family members.
(2) Indirect interest by virtue of his interest in Tan Chee Hoe & Sons Sdn. Bhd., Hotel Grand
Central Limited, Tan Teck Lin Holdings Sdn. Bhd. and family members.
(3) Indirect interest by virtue of her interest in Tan Teck Lin Holdings Sdn. Bhd. and family
members.
(4) Indirect interest by virtue of substantial holdings in Hotel Grand Central Limited.
(5) Indirect interest by virtue of direct/indirect holdings in Tan Chee Hoe & Sons Sdn. Bhd. and
Hotel Grand Central Limited.
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PROXY FORM
GRAND CENTRAL ENTERPRISES BHD (131696-V)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

I/We
of
being a member of GRAND CENTRAL ENTERPRISES BHD., hereby appoint

of
or failing him
of
as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the TWENTY SIXTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the
Company to be held at the Grand Hall, 10th Floor, Hotel Grand Continental, Jalan Belia/Jalan Raja Laut, 50350 Kuala
Lumpur on Tuesday, 26 April 2011 at 9.30 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.
My/our proxy is to vote as indicated hereunder.

RESOLUTIONS

FOR

Resolution 1

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2010.

Resolution 2

To re-elect Tan Teck Lin.

Resolution 3

To re-appoint Tan Eng Teong.

Resolution 4

To re-appoint Wong Tow Cheong.

Resolution 5

To re-appoint Tan Sri Dato Sri Abang Haji Ahmad Urai Bin Datu Hakim Abang
Haji Mohideen.

Resolution 6

To declare a First and Final Dividend.

Resolution 7

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees.

Resolution 8

To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young as Auditors and to authorise the directors
to fix their remuneration.

Resolution 9

To authorise the Directors to issue shares.

Resolution 10

To approve the amendment to the Articles of Association of the Company.

First Proxy

%

No. of Share Held :

Second Proxy

%

CDS A/C No.

Total :

Dated this

AGAINST

100%

day of

, 2011.
Signature

Notes :
1. A Member holding one thousand (1,000) ordinary shares or less may appoint only one (1) proxy to attend and vote at
a general meeting who shall represent all the shares held by such Member. A Member holding more than one
thousand (1,000) ordinary shares may appoint up to two (2) proxies to attend and vote at the same meeting. Where
a Member appoints two (2) proxies, he shall specify the proportion of his shareholdings to be represented by each
proxy.
2. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and need not be any of the persons prescribed by Section
149(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 1965.
3. The instrument appointing a proxy must be under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly authorised in writing.
Where the instrument appointing a proxy is executed by a corporation, it must be executed either under its seal or
under the hand of any officer or attorney duly authorised.
4. The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Company's Registered Office at No. 1 & 1A, 2nd Floor
(Room 2), Jalan Ipoh Kecil, 50350 Kuala Lumpur, at least forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the
meeting or at any adjournment thereof.

Fold this ﬂap for sealing

End fold here

STAMP
The Company Secretary
Grand Central Enterprises Bhd.
No. 1 & 1A, 2nd Floor ( Room 2 )
Jalan Ipoh Kecil
50350 Kuala Lumpur

3rd Fold here

